
 
 
 
Committee: 
 

BUDGET AND PERFORMANCE PANEL 

Date: 
 

TUESDAY, 23 OCTOBER 2007 

Venue: 
 

LANCASTER TOWN HALL 

Time: 4.30 P.M. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A G E N D A 
 
 
1. Apologies for absence  
 
2. Declaration of Interests  
 
3. Minutes of the Meeting held on 11th September 2007 (previously circulated)  
 
4. Items of Urgent Business authorised by the Chairman  
 
5. City Council Priorities 2008/9  
 
 Presentation by the Leader of the Council  
  
6. Star Chamber Updates (Pages 1 - 6) 
 
 Report of the Leader of the Council  
  
7. Legal Fees for Leases (Pages 7 - 12) 
 
 Report of Head of Legal and Human Resources   
  
8. Efficiency Strategy Review (Pages 13 - 26) 
 
 Report of Corporate Director (Finance and Performance)  
  
9. Corporate Plan Monitoring - Update (Pages 27 - 48) 
 
 Report of the Corporate Director (Finance & Performance)  
  
10. Local Environmental Quality Pilot Study (Pages 49 - 54) 
 
 Report of Head of City Contract (Direct) Services and Head of Corporate Strategy  
 
 

 

Councillors are reminded that as Members of Overview and Scrutiny 
they may not be subjected to the Party Whip, which is prohibited under 

the Lancaster City Council Constitution.

 



 

11. Work Programme Report (Pages 55 - 58) 
 
 Report of Head of Democratic Services  
  
 
ADMINISTRATIVE ARRANGEMENTS 
 
(i) Membership 

 
 Councillors Jim Blakely (Chairman), Tina Clifford, Jean Dent, Keran Farrow, 

Sarah Fishwick, Mike Greenall, Tony Johnson, Ian McCulloch and John Whitelegg 
 

 
(ii) Substitute Membership 

 
 Councillors Chris Coates, Roger Dennison, Rebekah Gerrard, Karen Leytham, 

Roger Plumb, Keith Sowden and Peter Williamson 
 

 
(iii) Queries regarding this Agenda 

 
 Please contact Jon Stark, Democratic Services - telephone (01524) 582132 or email 

jstark@lancaster.gov.uk. 
 

(iv) Changes to Membership, substitutions or apologies 
 

 Please contact Members’ Secretary, telephone 582170, or alternatively email 
memberservices@lancaster.gov.uk. 
 
 

MARK CULLINAN, 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE, 
TOWN HALL, 
LANCASTER LA1 1PJ 
 
Published on Monday, 15th October 2007 

 



 

 

BUDGET AND PERFORMANCE PANEL  
 
 
 
 

Star Chamber 
 

23rd October 2007 
 

Report of the Leader of the Council 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
To receive an update on the Star Chamber meetings held since the last report to Cabinet of 
4 September 2007. 
 
Key Decision  Non-Key Decision  Referral from Cabinet 

Member x
Date Included in Forward Plan N/A 

This report is public. 
 

 
 
(1) That the report be noted. 
 
1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 Star Chamber is an informal meeting of Cabinet Members supported by senior 

officers.  Its purpose is to provide a continuing process that examines current and 
future spending plans with the aims of ensuring value for money, identifying 
efficiencies and diverting resources into Council priorities and away from non-
priorities, as well as alternative methods of delivery.  It also provides the framework 
and focus for achieving the financial savings targets included in the Medium Term 
Financial Strategy and those efficiencies required under Gershon. Consequently, it 
will look at financial, physical, and human resource matters. 

 
1.2 The group meets regularly and reports for information are made on a regular basis 

into Cabinet and also into the Budget and Performance Panel. 
 
1.3 Star Chamber works to revised Terms of Reference as agreed at the Cabinet 

meeting held on 5 June 2007.   
 
1.4  Since the last report to Cabinet, Star Chamber met on 12 September and 

19 September.  Action notes are attached as an Appendix. 

Agenda Item 6Page 1



 
 
 
RELATIONSHIP TO POLICY FRAMEWORK 
 
The work of the Star Chamber is critical to providing a challenge and review to both the way 
that our services are provided or their appropriateness to the targets set out in the Corporate 
Plan & Policy Framework.  In particular this can be seen in: 
 
- Corporate Plan Core Values – Sound Financial Management  
- Corporate Plan Priority No 1 “To deliver value for money customer focused services” 
- Revenue Budget & Capital Programme Monitoring 
- Medium Term Financial Strategy target 
 
CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability and Rural 
Proofing) 
 
None arising directly as a result of this report. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
None arising directly as a result of this report. 
 

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
 
The Section 151 Officer has been consulted and has no comments to add. 
 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
None arising directly as a result of this report. 
 
 
MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
 
The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no comments to add. 
 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Corporate Plan 2006/07 
Revenue Budget and Capital Programme 
Medium Term Financial Strategy 2006 

Contact Officer: Roger Muckle 
Telephone: 01524 582022 
E-mail: rmuckle@lancaster.gov.uk 
Ref: RCM/JEB 

 
 

Page 2



APPENDIX 
 

ACTION NOTES FROM STAR CHAMBER 
HELD ON 12 SEPTEMBER 2007 

 
 
PRESENT: Councillors R Mace (Chair), J Barry, A Bryning, J Gilbert and D Kerr 

(substituting for Councillor E Archer) 
 
 M Cullinan, P Loker, N Muschamp and S Lucas (Notes) 
 
 
  
1. APOLOGIES 

 
Apologies received from Roger Muckle and John Donnellon 
 
 

2. NOTES OF MEETING HELD 29 AUGUST 2007 
 
No matters arising 
 
 

 BASE BUDGET REVIEW AND VALUE FOR MONEY ASSESSMENT 
 

3. COUNCIL HOUSING 
It was noted that the HRA is a ring fenced budget, but does have some impact on 
General Fund, mainly through the services it contracts, e.g. grounds maintenance and 
its contribution to overheads. 
 
Policy and Management 
It was proposed to look at options for reduction in future management capacity.  Options 
to be produced and considered. 
 
Repairs and Maintenance 
No options taken forward.  Proposals for efficiency savings noted. 
 
Special Services 
No options taken forward 
 
Welfare Services 
No savings as activity 100% recharged 
 
 

4. ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH 
 

 Environmental Protection 
Report to be brought back to Star Chamber on costs of ECOS, including 
advantages/disadvantages of ceasing the service and defined criteria for use of ECOS. 
 
Reports on future pressures, i.e. possible transfer of stray dogs from Police to Local 
Authorities and outcome of Rogers report will be brought back to future Star Chamber 
when more detail is available. 
 

Page 3



 
 Food Safety/Health and Safety 

Report back to Star Chamber on detailed costs for Health and Safety function and 
possibility of reducing to a minimum service.  Report to include benchmarking on 
“direct” costs. 
 

 Cemeteries 
Savings offered were mainly Gershon efficiencies and would impact on CC(D)S 
overheads.  Report requested for Star Chamber on the aggregate position to see if 
effective savings can be made. 
 

 Civil Contingencies 
Report back to Star Chamber on opportunity to share Service/expertise with Wyre 
Borough Council. 
 
 

5. STRATEGIC HOUSING 
 

 Housing Standards 
Correction on page 5 under Key Drivers section – number of HMOs is 500+ not 5000+. 
 
Agreed that the suitability of a Regional Accredited Property Scheme be explored and 
reported to Service PRT. 
 
Report back to Star Chamber on cost comparison with private sector for HMO 
inspection work. 
 
Investigate if we can publicise the extent of enforcement activities by naming landlords 
subject to enforcement actions. 
 

 Enabling (Home Improvement Team) 
Request for more information on the potential increase in demand due to release of 
backlog of Paediatric referrals and how we can manage that demand. 
 

 
 

 
Councillor J Barry left the meeting (12.10) 
 

 Homelessness 
Detailed report requested on possible savings on medical advice costs and potential 
funding/contributions from other agencies. 
 
Further work requested on benchmarking to include Preston and West Lancashire as 
more representative than Wyre and Fylde. 
 
 

6. CITY COUNCIL (DIRECT) SERVICES 
 
This item was deferred until the next Star Chamber meeting 
 
 

 
 

Page 4



ACTION NOTES FROM STAR CHAMBER HELD ON 19 SEPTEMBER 2007 
PRESENT:  Councillors R Mace (Chair), J Barry, A Bryning, J Gilbert,  
   J Donnellon, P Loker, N Muschamp, J Barlow (Notes) 
 

  

1 APOLOGIES 

 Apologies were received from Mark Cullinan and Roger Muckle. 

2 NOTES OF THE LAST MEETING 

 The notes were accepted as a correct record.  

3 BASE BUDGET REVIEW AND VALUE FOR MONEY ASSESSMENT 
COMMUNITY SERVICES DIRECTORATE CONT’D 

 City Council (Direct) Services (CC(D)S) 

 Waste Collection 

It was noted that that cost-sharing with County should generate more income than 
originally budgeted and this should be quantified within the revised budget exercise 
(December). 

Any savings once phase 5 and 6 were complete were not quantifiable at this stage. 

 Grounds Maintenance 

Carry out full review of maintenance standards, map onto GIS, compare through APSE 
performance network.  Invest to save but within existing budget initially. 

One potential area for increased income was trade contracts. 

 Finance and Admin. 

Savings already made, nothing further to offer. 

 Vehicle Maintenance 

Efficiency savings had been achieved through improved fleet management.  The 
Corporate Director to provide the cost/savings comparative figures at revised budget time. 

A further report was requested on informal discussions with adjacent Districts for shared 
services. 

 Building Cleaning 

This service was a straightforward fulfilment of a contract with Property Services.  Savings 
would only be achieved when the number of Council buildings was reduced as part of the 
Access To Services Review. 

 Highways Maintenance 

This operated as a contracted service and made a surplus. 

Page 5



 
4 BASE BUDGET REVIEW AND VALUE FOR MONEY ASSESSMENT 

REGENERATION DIRECTORATE  

 Economic Development and Tourism 

 Four options were considered. 

Option 1 – Decide not to support the implementation of Lancaster and Morecambe Vision.  
This option was not considered to be viable. 

Option 2 – Cease to operate one or both TICs.  This option was not supported.  Corporate 
Director to find out who owned the lease of the Morecambe building. 

Option 3 – Further cutbacks to Marketing budgets.  Corporate Director to provide a 
breakdown of the budgets for marketing and tourism detailing what mechanisms were in 
use. 

Option 4 – Cease to provide grant aid under the Business Development Grant Scheme.  A 
report was requested, after liaising with the University, to show alternative options. 

5 AIR QUALITY ACTION PLAN 

 The report was noted. 

5 DATE OF NEXT MEETING 

 Cllr Mace was not available for the next scheduled meeting on 3 October and it was 
agreed to cancel this and move items to 10 October.  Cllr Barry could not attend on 
10 October and would send his substitute, Cllr M Whitelegg. 

JEB/20 September 2007 
 

Page 6



 

 

BUDGET AND PERFORMANCE PANEL  
 
  
 

LEGAL FEES FOR LEASES 
23rd October 2007 

 
Report of Head of Legal and Human Resources 

  
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
To inform the Panel of the legal fees that are charged in property transactions, and in 
particular for leases, and of the outcome of a recent review of the fees.  
 
This report is public  

 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
(1) That the report be noted 
 
 
1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 It is the practice of the Council to recover a contribution towards its legal costs from 

the other party to a property transaction.  This is common practice among local 
authorities.  Accordingly, fees are charged on the sale of land, on the grant and 
renewal of leases and for various other legal agreements.  The Council’s current 
schedule of charges, which took effect on the 1st April 2007, is at Appendix A.  The 
fees are set by officers, and from time to time are compared with those fees charged 
by other local authorities in the north west to ensure comparability. 

 
1.2 In particular, with regard to leases, the Council’s legal fees are based on the rent 

payable under the lease.  This is a standard means of setting a scale of fees.  Legal 
fees are generally included in the negotiations undertaken by Property Services with 
the prospective tenant, and are then included as a term of the lease. 

 
1.3 The Council leases a wide variety of commercial premises, for example shops on 

Council housing estates, and various industrial units. St Leonard’s House contains a 
wide range of commercial lettings, with tenants including public bodies such as the 
County Council, Police Authority, NHS Trusts, charitable organisations, established 
companies, and individuals starting up in business. 

 
1.4 During the summer, Legal Services received a number of complaints, some from 

elected Members, about legal fees being charged to tenants at St Leonard’s House, 
and this has led to a review of the practices and procedures of Legal Services and 
Property Services in dealing with leases at that property. 

 
2.0 Review 

Agenda Item 7Page 7



2.1 The complaints received related specifically to individuals setting up new businesses 
in St Leonard’s House.  As a result of undertaking the review, it became apparent 
that in some cases, rather than being given a formal lease on entering into 
possession, some of these individuals, were simply being asked to sign Heads of 
Terms, with a formal lease being offered after the initial year.  Some confusion was 
arising in that the tenants perceived such a formal lease as a renewal, whereas for 
Legal Services the document was in fact the first grant of a lease.  Confusion also 
arose with regard to legal fees, as these were not always charged in the first year. 

 
2.2 As a result of the review, officers in Legal Services and Property Services have 

concluded that all new tenants should now be granted an initial lease for a period of 
three years, but that such a lease should include a “break clause” to enable the 
tenant to terminate at the end of the first or the second year.  This will protect the 
tenant in the event that the business does not succeed, or equally if the business 
succeeds to such an extent that the premises are no longer suitable. For tenants who 
are individuals establishing a new business, the standard legal fee for a commercial 
lease will be reduced to £150 on the initial grant, with a fee on renewal of £50. 

 
2.3 Whilst it is acknowledged that in many cases a lease document and a renewal will be 

in a standard form, and will require little amendment, many individual tenants, 
perhaps because they are dealing with the Council rather than with a commercial 
landlord, choose not to appoint their own solicitor to deal with the transaction on their 
behalf, and for that reason frequently ask officers in Legal Services questions that 
would normally be expected to be dealt with by their own solicitor.  Further, because 
Legal staff are aware that tenants do not have their own solicitor, the Legal staff 
frequently assist the tenant with the completion of the forms required to deal with 
stamp duty, and respond to inquiries about stamp duty.  Accordingly, the transaction 
is more time consuming for Legal staff than simply printing and sending out a 
standard document.  This may not have been appreciated by those making the 
complaints.   However, officers have accepted that for individuals starting up in 
business, the £350 fee on grant and renewal may be perceived as too high, and for 
this reason the lower charge of £150 on grant and £50 on renewal has been 
introduced.  This will, however, apply only to new individual traders at St Leonard’s 
House.  It is not considered unreasonable to continue to charge the existing rates to 
established commercial undertakings.  

 
3.0 Details of Consultation  
 
3.1 The review has been undertaken by officers in Legal Services and Property Services 

in the light of complaints received from elected Members.  There has been no formal 
consultation, although officers have earlier this year undertaken a survey of the legal 
fees charged by other local authorities in the north west.  

 
4.0 Options and Options Analysis (including risk assessment) 
 
4.1 The report is for noting, as the determination of legal fees is a matter for officers. 
 
5.0 Conclusion  
 
5.1 The Panel is asked to note the report. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 8



 
CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability and Rural 
Proofing) 
 
None arising from this report. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
Generally, Legal Services would seek to maximise their income by ensuring that, wherever  
possible, legal fees are recharged to the other party to a property transaction.  This is 
recognised as standard practice, and accords with good financial management of the 
Service.  However, it is recognised that this may conflict with the Council’s regeneration 
objectives, if a legal fee is prohibitive for a new business.  It is estimated that the proposed 
reduction in legal fees charged to new businesses at St Leonard’s House will reduce the 
Service’s income by around £600 each year. However, this can be recovered through 
adjusting the other legal charges from the 1st April 2008.  
SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
 
The Section 151 Officer has been consulted and has no further comments. 
 
 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
Legal Services have been involved in the preparation of the report. 
 
 
MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
 
The Deputy Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments. 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
None 

Contact Officer: Mrs S. Taylor 
Telephone:  01524 582025 
E-mail: STaylor@lancaster.gov.uk 
Ref:  

 

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 11



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

    
 
    
 

BUDGET & PERFORMANCE PANEL  
 
  
 

EFFICIENCY / VALUE FOR MONEY STRATEGY 
 

23rd October 2007 
 

Report of Corporate Director (Finance & Performance)  
  
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
To seek comments from the Panel on the draft updated strategy prior to consideration 
by Cabinet 
 
This report is public  

 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
(1) That the Panel consider the draft, updated strategy and pass on any comments 

to Cabinet for their consideration 
 
 
1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 In November 2005, Cabinet approved the existing Efficiency/VFM strategy to ensure 

that there was a clear framework in place to deliver both the financial targets included 
in the Medium Term Financial Strategy and those required under the Government’s 
Gershon programme. It was recognised at that time that the council had a range of 
plans and strategies in place to generate savings and efficiencies but it was not 
always clear how these all contributed to the wider picture. The development of this 
strategy set out the overall framework of the council’s arrangements to deliver 
efficient, cost effective services that provided value for money. 

 
2.0 Details 
 
2.1 Over the last 2 years, the strategy has served the council well and all the annual 

targets of the MTFS have been met, though clearly these include other savings in 
addition to efficiency measures.  More specifically, the 3 year Gershon efficiency 
target of £1.752m has not only been achieved in only 2 years but also exceeded with 
over £2m of efficiencies being generated.  

 
2.2 However, the local government change agenda has meant that the existing strategy 

is now in need of a refresh to ensure that it is consistent with current government 

Agenda Item 8Page 13



initiatives and changes that have occurred within the council. In particular, the 
government has recently announced under the Chancellor’s Comprehensive 
Spending Review 2007 (CSR07) that all councils will need to achieve further savings 
over the 3 year period commencing April 2008 equivalent to 3% of their revenue 
spending.  

 
2.3 As a consequence, this initial draft, updated strategy (attached as Appendix A) has 

been produced for the Panel’s consideration prior to its presentation to Cabinet for 
approval. Due to the success of the existing strategy in identifying savings and 
efficiencies, it is not proposed to make radical changes, however the strategy has 
been refreshed to update its component parts where they themselves have changed 
since the original strategy was approved. 

 
2.4 Once more details of the Government’s new requirements are known, together with 

the outcome of the latest Use of Resources Assessment by the Audit Commission, 
any actions arising will also be incorporated into the Strategy as appropriate.   (The 
Panel will be advised should any such issues arise.) 

 
 
3.1 The Panel are therefore asked to consider the updated, draft strategy and to pass on 

any comments to Cabinet for their subsequent consideration. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability and Rural 
Proofing) 
 
None direct but the component parts of the strategy do impact on all these issues to some 
degree. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
None directly from this report although each component part of the strategy will either have 
financial implications that have previously been approved, or the implications will be 
considered when the component parts themselves are updated and reviewed. 
 
It is expected that the key components will continue to support the achievement of 
Government efficiency targets, as well as contribute to the Council’s own MTFS targets..  
 
SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
 
The s151 Officer has been consulted and has no further comments to add. 
 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
None arising from this report. 
 

Page 14



MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
 
The Deputy Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no comments to add. 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
None 
 

Contact Officer: R Muckle 
Telephone: 01524 582022 
E-mail: rmuckle@lancaster.gov.uk 
Ref: rcm/jeb/effvfm 

 

Page 15



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 
 

EFFICIENCY / VALUE FOR MONEY  
STRATEGY 

 
2007-2011 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Updated September 2007 

Page 17



Value for Money Efficiency Strategy 

2 

EFFICIENCY/VALUE FOR MONEY STRATEGY 
 
1 Introduction and Overview 
 
Lancaster City Council has a proven track record in making efficiency savings each year.   However, 
how the Council achieves these savings may not at times appear clear as a whole range of strategies 
and initiatives contribute to the overall outcome.   This updated framework strategy sets out how all 
these differing strands contribute to the identification of those savings/efficiencies that have enabled 
the various financial and Gershon targets included in the Medium Term Financial Strategy to be met to 
date, and how future targets will continue to be met.   
 
In undertaking the existing processes referred to above, Value for Money (VfM) initiatives are crucial in 
order to challenge existing practices with a view to improving the efficient use of its resources. In this 
way, savings and efficiencies can be identified and redirected into key priorities, and enables the 
Council to demonstrate that the services it delivers are provided in the most cost effective manner 
within the context of continuous improvement.   
 
In the Corporate Plan, the Council has committed itself to a number of medium term objectives and 
associated priority outcomes related to improving efficiency and effectiveness through ensuring that 
VfM is a key principle in all of the Council’s business.   In particular :- 
 
To Deliver Value for Money, Customer Focused Services that will :- 
 
• Keep the annual council tax increase to a minimum whilst achieving the other policy 

objective and priority outcomes 
• Refocus services around the needs of our citizens and other customers and improve 

customer satisfaction with both the council and the services it provides 
 
Furthermore the Council has a number of core values and principles that contribute to effective 
decision-making and VfM in service delivery.   In particular: 
 
Putting the Needs of the Public First 
Sound Financial Management 
Good Employment Practices 
Sustainable Development 
Continuous Service Improvement 
Accountable and Sound decision-making 
 
VfM is assuming an ever-increasing importance in the performance assessment of a Local Authority.   
It is itself one of 5 components judged in the annual Use of Resources assessment and also forms an 
important part of the CPA inspection regime.  
 
The Audit Code of Practice requires external auditors to give a positive conclusion as to whether an 
organisation has put in place proper arrangements to secure VfM. It is vital therefore, that the Council 
has an integrated and coherent Efficiency/VfM Strategy in place.    
 

Page 18



Value for Money Efficiency Strategy 

3 

2 Contents of the Strategy 
 
This document covers the following areas: 
 
• What is meant by VfM  
• What are the objectives of the VfM Strategy 
• The mechanisms by which VfM is achieved 
• Other practices and procedures 
• Conclusion 
 
3 What is meant by Value for Money 
 
Efficiency and Value for Money are inextricably linked and the diagram below sets out the relationship 
between the two and other related concepts.   
 
 

 
 
VfM therefore, can be defined as the relationship between economy, efficiency and effectiveness 
where: 
 
• economy is the price paid for what goes into providing a service 
• efficiency is a measure of productivity  
• effectiveness is a measure of the impact achieved in either quantitative or qualitative ways  
 
VfM is high when the Council can achieve the best balance between these three components – 
relatively low costs, high productivity and successful outcomes.   
 
Lancaster City Council has an annual revenue budget of approximately  £114.2 million and capital 
programme of approximately  £42.5m.   Demand for the services that are provided is constantly 
increasing yet resources are limited.   In keeping Council Tax increases down to an acceptable level, 
the Council tries to ensure that each £1 is spent as carefully, as wisely, and as efficiently as possible 
in line with the views and needs of its local communities.   
 
Like all authorities, the Council has a duty to deliver Value for Money and the continuous improvement 
in the provision of its services.   
 

Page 19



Value for Money Efficiency Strategy 

4 

In this context, VfM means that the services which the council provides: 
 
Are delivered ECONOMICALLY 
Are delivered EFFICIENTLY 
Are delivered EFFECTIVELY 
Are of the right QUALITY 
Meet the NEEDS of local people 
 
4 Objectives of the Strategy 
 
This strategy seeks to support the delivery of a range of Council key objectives and initiatives that 
underpin the achievement of the Corporate Plan priorities and MTFS targets, namely: 
 
• The provision of quality, cost effective services that meet the needs of local communities 
• To help identify efficiencies/savings that can be redirected into corporate priorities 
• To help identify efficiencies/savings to contribute to the Gershon/CSR07 savings targets included 

in the Medium Term Financial Strategy.   
• The integration of best value principles to bring about continuous improvement in service delivery 
• The structured review of services on a targeted basis which challenges existing practices 
• The benchmarking of performance against comparable organisations and against standard 

service benchmarks 
• The development of the workforce so that they can achieve VfM as an integral 
• part of their work 
 
5 The mechanisms by which efficiency/VfM are achieved 
 
Following the Gershon Review in July 2004 (Releasing Resources for the Frontline), there has been a 
more structured national approach to the delivery of efficiency savings in the public sector. This has 
more recently been developed further within the CSR07 statement which requires councils to meet a 
3% cashable saving over the 3 year period 2008/2011.  How this relates to the VfM strategy is 
addressed later in this strategy but this Council has itself already developed its own structured 
approach in recent years for identifying efficiencies to meet the targets within its Medium Term 
Financial Strategy (MTFS) and more recently, those set under Gershon, and it is wholly appropriate to 
continue this approach to meet those targets in the CSR07.  
 
The approach that has been developed within the Council is set out in the Diagram below and 
includes procedures/protocols that are well established with a proven track record but also includes 
recent innovations designed to meet the change agenda in local government.   Indeed, the Council is 
currently refining its Performance Management arrangements to strengthen its approach for ensuring 
it gets the best use from its limited resources whilst seeking to achieve continuous improvement and 
targeting areas of identified poor performance.    
 
The existing initiatives/strategies that all contribute to improving Value for Money and increased 
efficiencies and are integral to this framework strategy are discussed briefly below.   In many cases 
they overlap and inform each other. The strategy can be demonstrated by setting out their relationship 
diagrammatically.   
 

Page 20



Value for Money Efficiency Strategy 

5 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Corporate Property Strategy 
 
The Council’s Corporate Property Strategy seeks to make the most efficient use of its building portfolio 
in the delivery of its corporate priorities.   The strategy specifically includes the following statement: 
 
“Challenge and review of the use, provision, and performance of property is seen as a positive 
approach to ensuring that assets are fit for purpose, and that retention, investment and 
utilisation are focused on the needs of the customer, and the achievement of the Council’s 
corporate objectives.  ” 
 
The Strategy incorporates Asset Management Plan (AMP) information, which analyses for what use 
the assets are held, how much they cost, what they contribute to the corporate plan, and how cost 
effective each is.   The requirement to seek out and identify external funding sources is also of 
paramount importance particularly in financing large-scale capital developments.  Inextricably linked to 
this therefore, is the Capital Investment Strategy (CIS) which ensures that capital resources are 
maximized, are affordable, and wholly directed to finance the priorities in the Corporate Plan. The 
Corporate Property Strategy and CIS are all monitored by the officer asset management working 
group. In particularly, this group undertakes project appraisals of new capital bids, performance 
monitoring, and post project appraisals as the Project Board for those schemes project managed 
under LAMP to ensure that the intended outcomes have been achieved.   The Corporate Property 
Officer as property champion, chairs the group. Recent developments have seen the approval of a 
non-housing Energy strategy, the introduction of individual service asset management plans, and an 
agreed strategy to rationalise the use of all the Council’s office accommodation.    
 
The Cabinet member with responsibility for Property is the member asset management champion who 
reviews performance at the quarterly Performance Review Team meetings. The asset management 
champion reports direct into Cabinet when appropriate and the performance of the asset portfolio is 
also open to scrutiny through the non-executive Budget and Performance Panel.   
 
 

Value for Money 
 
 
 
 

Efficiency Strategy 

MTFS 

Star Chamber / 
Gershon/CSR07 

Strategy 

Performance 
Management 
Framework 

Risk 
Management 

Strategy 

Procurement 
Strategy 

Consultation 
Strategy 

T-Government 
Strategy 

HR People 
Strategy 

Corporate 
Property   
Strategy 

Corporate 
Property   
Strategy 

Capital 
Investment 

Strategy 

Page 21



Value for Money Efficiency Strategy 

6 

 
Capital Investment Strategy (CIS) 
 
This strategy effectively ensures that the council’s limited capital resources are maximised and used 
solely to deliver the priorities identified in the Corporate Plan. It sets out the criteria on an annual basis 
that is used to assess the relevance and appropriateness of both existing and new capital 
schemes/proposals to deliver the corporate priorities.  
 
In particular, it lists and sets out the Council’s capital investment priorities, the process by which 
schemes will be prioritised, and how resources will be allocated. Together with the Corporate Property 
Strategy, the CIS ensures that the 5 year capital investment programme is balanced and focused to 
deliver the corporate priorities. 
 
 Agreed by Cabinet each year, it is an integral part of the Medium Term Financial Strategy and 
ensures that capital resources are effectively managed and provide value for money.  
 
Procurement Strategy 
 
The Council has had in place a Corporate Procurement Strategy since June 2003.   This strategy has 
been built on the targets and priorities of the National Procurement and E Government Strategies with 
a view to ensure that the Council’s procurement of goods and services are undertaken in a targeted 
manner to achieve service priorities in the most cost effective and environmentally sustainable 
manner.   Strategic Procurement has an important role to play in enabling the Council to achieve its 
ambition of achieving VfM from the way in which it procures and delivers services and uses its 
resources in an economic, efficient and effective way.   Indeed, the Strategy’s vision is to obtain VfM 
through the planned and skilful management of procurement and supply chains whilst wherever 
possible, meeting environmentally sustainable criteria.   
 
The Corporate Procurement Strategy and its related Improvement and Development Plan plays a 
fundamental part in examining how the Council will deliver innovative and smarter ways of 
procurement and, how it can work in partnership with others in order to improve service delivery.   In 
order to ensure that the objectives of the Corporate Procurement Strategy are met, the Council has 
appointed a Procurement Officer Team and the Corporate Director (Central Services) is the nominated 
officer procurement champion.   The officer champion chairs an officer procurement group.   
 
On the member side, the Cabinet member with responsibility for Finance is the Member Procurement 
Champion.  Regular updates from the officer group on the progress being made in achieving the 
targets set out in the procurement strategy are reported quarterly into the Performance Review Team 
meeting.    Scrutiny of the procurement function is undertaken by the Overview and Scrutiny’s Budget 
and Performance Panel.   
 
T- Government (formerly E Govt) Strategy 
 
Lancaster City Council has a structured framework to implement new technical initiatives to ensure the 
maximum benefits are achieved from its IT infrastructure.   The Council’s Transformational 
Government strategy (formerly E Govt) is closely aligned to national strategies which seek to bring 
about service business re-engineering efficiencies by implementing IT system improvements designed 
to improve both service delivery and accessibility.   
 
The Council has made substantial investment in its IT infrastructure in recent years bringing 
efficiencies through on-line transactions and reductions in duplication resulting in improvements in 
VfM.   In particular, the development of a Customer Service Centre framework is now fundamental to 

Page 22



Value for Money Efficiency Strategy 

7 

achieving further improvements and efficiencies in service delivery and accessibility, and is the focal 
point of the Council’s T-Government programme.   
 
Until recently, the Council’s T Government strategy and vision has been continually updated by, and 
monitored through, the joint officer/member T Government Cabinet Liaison Group chaired by the 
Cabinet T Champion.   The work of the liaison group has now been subsumed into the quarterly 
Performance Review Team meetings. Implementation of the strategy is still the responsibility of the T 
Government Member and Officer Champions. The identification and achievement of savings and 
efficiencies through implementing this strategy are reported through the PRTs and when appropriate, 
into Cabinet. Scrutiny is undertaken by the Budget and Performance Panel.   
 
Risk Management Strategy 
 
The Council’s Risk Management Strategy and Policy Statement effectively sets out how the Council 
has embedded risk assessment into its strategic and operational decision making.   It seeks to ensure 
that the council is always informed what are the risks in any course of action it is considering and how 
they can be mitigated.    The introduction of a computerised risk management system and the 
continued updating of strategic and service specific risk registers have brought about major 
improvements in the identification of potential risks and how they can be mitigated, thus ensuring the 
delivery of service objectives in a cost effective manner. Each risk is allocated a responsible officer 
and Risk Treatment Actions agreed to mitigate risks to an acceptable level. Progress made in 
achieving these RTAs is reported into the quarterly Performance Review Team meetings. In addition, 
the strategy itself is monitored by the officer Risk Management Group and progress on implementing 
the Risk Management Action Plan is reported to the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis with scrutiny 
provided by the Budget and Performance Panel.  
 
HR People Strategy & Workforce Development Plan 
 
The Council employs approximately 1,000 staff and pursues a programme of actions that are set out 
in the HR People and Workforce Development Plan.   The HR priorities and initiatives within the plan 
seek to obtain maximum efficiency from the Council’s workforce.   Specifically, these are targeted on: 
 
Workforce Reform 
-includes workforce planning as well as change management issues.   
 
Pay Modernisation 
-includes the completion of Fair Pay Single Status and Job Evaluation exercises.   
 
Learning and Development 
 - includes staff and workforce training and development programmes and building capacity.   
 
Leadership and Management Development 
-includes the “Success through People” training initiative, which in turn contributes to the more 
effective management and performance of the organisation in all aspects.    
 
Absence Management 
- includes promotion of existing policy to improve attendance levels and hence productivity.   
 
Recruitment and Retention 
- introduction of Job Centre Plus and web-based systems have reduced costs of recruitment.   
 

Page 23



Value for Money Efficiency Strategy 

8 

Flexible Working / Homeworking 
- modernization of  HR policies, such as flexible and home working are being developed to bring 

about better productivity and reduced transport/accommodation costs. 
 

Equality & Diversity   
- Provision of services that recognise the different needs within our community and own workforce 

to reduce inequalities 
 
The People Strategy & Workforce Development Plan collates all these HR components and 
associated strategies/plans into one document for easy reference.  
 
Corporate Consultation Strategy 
 
The Council recognises the increasing value that active consultation plays in service delivery and how 
important it is to deliver services that reflect local needs and concerns.   Recent public consultation 
exercises in respect of the Access To Services Review and revised Corporate Plan Priorities 
continually enable the Council to reappraise its service priorities and delivery options. Recent 
investments in consultation have seen the council appoint its own dedicated Consultation Officer, 
develop a computerised on line consultation system and toolkit, and establish a local residents focus 
group.  
Customer feedback plays an important role in identifying services standards and areas for 
improvement and the introduction of the Customer First Strategy has enabled an online complaints 
and compliments system to be developed. 
 
Performance Management Framework 
   
The Corporate Plan sets out six medium term objectives, the delivery of which are supported through 
a series of corporate priorities linked to key performance indicators delivered through Service 
Business Plans.   These plans contain both strategic ( from the Corporate Plan ) and service based 
local performance measures and targets which are cascaded within services into individual work 
programmes and appraisals targets.   The achievement against Corporate Plan targets is monitored 
on an exception level basis through the quarterly Performance Review Team meetings and 
operationally through officer line management and supervision arrangements. These reports highlight 
where performance is not on track and where issues are not progressing as planned. Actions to 
address these areas are agreed thus ensuring that targets are brought back on line. Quarterly 
performance reports are also presented to the Budget and Performance Panel for scrutiny purposes. 
The whole framework is underpinned by the EDPA process ( Employee Development & Appraisal 
System ) under which each employee’s annual performance objectives are agreed and are appraised 
on a 6 monthly basis.  In this way the council ensures that all staff have the capacity and skills to 
deliver their priorities. The officer performance management group oversees the Performance 
Management Framework. 
 
Benchmarking is a very important component of performance management and assists in 
demonstrating VfM in service delivery.   The council continues to develop the effective use of 
benchmarking using a variety of financial data that includes the audit commission’s vfm service 
profiles and these are now playing a more prominent role in PRT meetings and the annual review of 
services through Star Chamber. 
 
The recent implementation of the Council’s own project management and appraisal system, LAMP 
(Lancaster’s Approach to Managing Projects) is now providing an effective system to ensure projects 
are delivered on time, on budget , and achieve their intended outcomes. 
 

Page 24



Value for Money Efficiency Strategy 

9 

The reporting structure of the Performance Management Framework is currently being improved by 
the implementation of the Escendency PM system.  This computerised system provides an online, real 
time snap shot of performance at various management levels tailor-made for its recipient and is 
available 24/7 to managers.  
 
Externally, the Council is guided by the work of a number of inspection bodies, namely the IDeA Peer 
reviews and Audit Commission/CPA inspections.   The recommended outcomes for improvement from 
these are included in the Council’s Corporate and Service Plans and this is supplemented by any 
other recommendations from Service Reviews, audit judgements and reports, and the annual Audit 
Management Letter. In this way, the Council can demonstrate that it is proactively seeking to deliver 
both service improvements and effective VfM.   
 
The Government has recently announcement that the current Best Value statutory indicators will be 
abolished from April 2008 and replaced by a reduced set of indicators that will be progressed through 
Local Area Agreements. The Council will ensure that this process is considered within its corporate 
planning and budget cycle each year when all the relevant information is available. 
 
Gershon/CSR07 Efficiencies 
 
With effect from 2005/06 the City Council, in common with other local authorities, has had to produce 
an Annual Efficiency Statement (AES).  This statement shows how successful the Council has been in 
delivering its 3 year efficiency targets set by the Government.  The identification and successful 
delivery of these targets has been developed through the ongoing Star Chamber/VfM service self 
assessment programme which has seen the council’s target of £1.752m successfully delivered in only 
2 years.  
The process of identifying efficiencies and savings for Gershon is inextricably linked to the council’s 
own Medium Term Financial Strategy which includes efficiency and savings targets in excess of those 
required under Gershon. These targets are set each year by Council to ensure that Council Tax 
annual increases are kept to an acceptable level.  
 
By achieving the MTFS targets each year ( and consequently its Gershon targets as well ), the Star 
Chamber process has proved its effectiveness in identifying efficiencies and savings. As a 
consequence, it will continue to be used as a key mechanism for challenging service delivery and for 
providing an effective review of value for money, and as a conduit for achieving the new 3 year 
savings required from April 2008 under the CSR07 review. 
 
Star Chamber Process 
 
The City Council follows a three year financial strategy for its revenue budget and a 5 year rolling 
programme for its capital investment projects, both of which are updated on an annual basis.   This 
process results in a structured approach to budget formulation in which members and officers assess 
existing service delivery mechanisms against the requirements of the Corporate Plan.   Running 
throughout this strategy is the theme of long term efficiency savings and through the Star Chamber 
process, the Cabinet is able to challenge and review service activity to identify savings and efficiencies 
in order to achieve the Gershon efficiency targets and those also included within the Medium Term 
Financial Strategy.    
 
Star Chamber is an informal panel of Cabinet members and senior officers provides an effective 
challenge to existing service delivery standards to ensure that they reflect corporate priorities, local 
needs, and are cost effective. It meets regularly throughout the year and reports into both Cabinet and 
the Budget and Performance Panel on progress. 
 

Page 25



Value for Money Efficiency Strategy 

10 

Each year Star Chamber reviews each council service in the manner outlined above and this process 
has a proven track record of achieving the level of  savings that have allowed annual council tax 
increases to be maintained within acceptable levels.   VfM challenges are now integrated into the Star 
Chamber process through the service self assessment process.   In addition, procedures have been 
strengthened to ensure business plans include specific VfM PIs and financial accounting systems are 
being developed to provide comparative service activity costing information.   Services are 
encouraged to use the VfM profile information that is available on the Audit Commission’s website and 
other comparative VfM information from benchmarking groups in their performance management 
reports to members.    
 
The outcome of the Star Chamber process is a set of Cabinet budget and policy proposals which 
recommend to Council a balanced revenue and capital budget set within the limitations outlined in the 
Medium Term Financial Strategy and in line with Corporate Plan aspirations.   This process also 
ensures that the Council provides an annual VfM challenge as part of its annual budget setting 
processes and that external savings targets such as Gershon and CSR07 are met.   
 
6 Other Practices and Procedures 
 
Overview and Scrutiny 
 
To supplement the above, the Council’s Overview and Scrutiny arrangements ensure that there are 
robust procedures in place to challenge and scrutinize the performance and cost effectiveness of the 
City Council.    In particularly, Overview & Scrutiny Committee monitor the effectiveness of Council 
policy and the Budget and Performance Panel have responsibility for performance management and 
reviewing VfM in service delivery.   
 
The Role of Internal Audit 
 
In its day to day work, Internal Audit makes a key contribution to the efficiency/VfM strategy in that it 
examines, evaluates and reports on the extent to which the Council’s control environment contributes 
to the proper, economic, effective and efficient use of resources.   Areas of waste and inefficiency are 
highlighted and remedial action proposed in reports to service managers.   The implementation of 
these recommendations is reported to, and monitored by, the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis.   
 
7 Conclusion 
 
To date, the council has been effective in delivering the efficiency and savings targets that have been 
required to satisfy national targets and also those to maintain council tax at acceptable levels to local 
residents. This has been achieved by constantly reviewing the above framework to ensure that the 
various strands outlined above are consistent with each other to deliver the intended outcome of 
providing cost effective services that reflect local needs. 
 
 

Page 26



1 

  

BUDGET & PERFORMANCE PANEL  
  
 

Corporate Plan Progress Monitoring  
6 Monthly Review  

 
23 October 2007 

 
Report of Corporate Director  (Finance & Performance) 

 
 
 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

To advise the Panel of progress to date in implementing the 
Council’s Corporate Plan priorities and of agreed action to address 
any underperformance 

 
 

Recommendation :- 
 

1. That the Panel note the progress made in delivering the Corporate Plan 
priorities as at 30th September and also the corrective action that has 
been agreed. 

 
2. That the Panel consider if any further recommendations are appropriate 

 
 

1.0 Background 
 
1.1 This report sets out the latest progress in delivering the priorities within the 

Corporate Plan as at 30th September 2007. 
 
1.2 Within the Plan there are 6 medium term objectives, 22 priority outcomes, and 

58 associated KPIs. 
 
1.3 The KPI under priority outcome 20, in relation to delivering the targets in the 

Corporate Improvement Plan (CIP), is now obsolete following Cabinet’s 
decision to subsume the CIP into the Corporate Plan to avoid duplication of 
targets. This is reflected in the figures reported in the table below that show the 
number of KPIs as being 57. 

 
1.4 The table shows that good progress is being made in the vast majority of 

priorities. 3 have been completed ahead of schedule, 17 completed on 
schedule, a further 33 on target, but 4 are in need of corrective action. 

 

Agenda Item 9Page 27



2 

1.5 The Performance Management Group (PMG) met on 12th October to consider 
progress and the report is also to be tabled to the appropriate Performance 
Review Team meetings. 

 
1.6 Arising from their consideration of the report, the PMG agreed corrective action 

in respect of the 4 indicators that were red at the half year stage. These are set 
out in the attached Appendix. 

 
 
 
 

PRIORITY 
OUTCOMES 

KPI 
ACHIEVED 
AHEAD OF 
TARGET 
(BLUE) 

KPI NOT 
ON 

TARGET 
(RED) 

KPI ON 
TARGET TO 

BE 
ACHIEVED 
(AMBER) 

KPI 
ACHIEVED IN 

LINE WITH 
TARGET 
(GREEN) 

To Deliver vfm, 
customer focused 
services 

1 1 4 1 

To make our district 
a cleaner, healthier 
place 

- - 5 1 

To reduce crime 
and the fear of 
crime 

- - 4 2 

To lead the 
regeneration of our 
district 

2 1 5 7 

To support 
sustainable 
communities 

- 1 9 4 

To continue to 
improve the 
Council 

- 1 6 2 

TOTAL 3  
(5%) 

4  
(7%) 

33 
(58%) 

17 
(30%) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 28



  

8.
00

 A
pp

ro
ve

d 
B

y 
C

ou
nc

il 
18

 A
pr

il 
20

07
 

3 

M
ED

IU
M

 T
ER

M
 O

B
JE

C
TI

VE
 

To
 d

el
iv

er
 v

al
ue

-fo
r-

m
on

ey
 c

us
to

m
er

-fo
cu

se
d 

se
rv

ic
es

 
 Th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
is

 c
om

m
itt

ed
 to

 k
ee

pi
ng

 C
ou

nc
il 

ta
x 

ris
es

 to
 a

 m
ax

im
um

 o
f 4

.5
%

 in
 2

00
8/

9 
an

d 
4.

0%
 in

 2
00

9/
10

 in
 o

rd
er

 to
 m

ee
t t

he
 ta

rg
et

s 
se

t o
ut

 in
 it

s 
M

ed
iu

m
 T

er
m

 F
in

an
ci

al
 S

tra
te

gy
 (

M
TF

S
). 

A
t 

th
e 

sa
m

e 
tim

e 
w

e 
m

us
t 

en
su

re
 t

ha
t 

th
e 

ca
pi

ta
l p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
re

m
ai

ns
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

. 
U

ns
up

po
rte

d 
bo

rr
ow

in
g 

m
us

t b
e 

ke
pt

 to
 a

 m
in

im
um

. K
ey

 to
 th

is
 is

 e
ns

ur
in

g 
th

at
 th

e 
m

on
ey

 w
e 

ha
ve

 is
 s

pe
nt

 o
n 

ou
r 

co
rp

or
at

e 
pr

io
rit

ie
s 

se
t o

ut
 in

 th
is

 P
la

n 
an

d 
th

at
 v

al
ue

 fo
r 

m
on

ey
 is

 a
ch

ie
ve

d.
 

Th
e 

m
os

t s
ev

er
e 

th
re

at
 to

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

bi
lit

y 
of

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

is
 th

e 
co

st
 o

f r
ep

ai
rin

g 
an

d 
m

ai
nt

ai
ni

ng
 o

ur
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

. W
e 

ne
ed

 to
 re

du
ce

 th
es

e 
lo

ng
 te

rm
 

co
st

s 
as

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 o

ng
oi

ng
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n 
re

vi
ew

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
A

cc
es

s 
to

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
A

ct
io

n 
P

la
n.

 

C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

de
ci

de
d 

th
at

 a
ll 

of
 it

s 
te

le
ph

on
e 

an
d 

fa
ce

 to
 fa

ce
 s

er
vi

ce
s,

 w
he

re
ve

r p
os

si
bl

e,
 w

ill
 b

e 
de

liv
er

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
m

od
er

n,
 a

cc
es

si
bl

e 
cu

st
om

er
 

fri
en

dl
y,

 C
us

to
m

er
 S

er
vi

ce
 C

en
tre

s 
in

 L
an

ca
st

er
 a

nd
 M

or
ec

am
be

.  
Th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
C

us
to

m
er

 S
er

vi
ce

 C
en

tre
 is

 p
op

ul
ar

 w
ith

 o
ur

 c
us

to
m

er
s 

an
d 

th
e 

ro
ll-

ou
t 

of
 th

is
 s

uc
ce

ss
fu

l a
pp

ro
ac

h 
w

ill
 c

on
tin

ue
.  

 
Li

nk
 to

 th
e 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

tr
at

eg
y:

 M
ee

tin
g 

E
ss

en
tia

l N
ee

ds
; T

ak
in

g 
P

ar
t; 

P
os

iti
ve

 P
la

nn
in

g 
an

d 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

 
Pr

io
rit

y 
O

ut
co

m
es

 
W

ha
t w

e 
w

ill
 d

o 
th

is
 y

ea
r 

K
ey

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 In
di

ca
to

rs
 

Pr
og

re
ss

 

1.
 

To
 k

ee
p 

th
e 

an
nu

al
 c

ou
nc

il 
ta

x 
in

cr
ea

se
 to

 a
 m

in
im

um
 w

hi
ls

t 
ac

hi
ev

in
g 

th
e 

ot
he

r p
ol

ic
y 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
 a

nd
 p

rio
rit

y 
ou

tc
om

es
 

K
ee

p 
an

nu
al

 c
ou

nc
il 

ta
x 

in
cr

ea
se

s 
to

 n
o 

m
or

e 
th

an
 4

.5
%

 in
 2

00
8/

9 
an

d 
4.

0%
 in

 2
00

9/
10

 

1.
1 

20
08

/9
 c

ou
nc

il 
ta

x 
in

cr
ea

se
 

be
lo

w
 4

.5
%

 a
nd

 4
.0

%
 in

 
20

09
/1

0 

A
m

be
r -

 M
ed

iu
m

 T
er

m
 ta

rg
et

 

Is
 b

ei
ng

 p
ro

gr
es

se
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

ag
re

ed
 

bu
dg

et
 a

nd
 p

ol
ic

y 
fra

m
ew

or
k 

tim
et

ab
le

 

 
A

ch
ie

ve
 th

e 
sa

vi
ng

s 
ta

rg
et

s 
se

t o
ut

 
in

 o
ur

 M
ed

iu
m

 T
er

m
 F

in
an

ci
al

 
S

tra
te

gy
 

1.
2 

£8
02

,0
00

 o
f M

TF
S

 ta
rg

et
 

sa
vi

ng
s 

by
 M

ar
ch

 ’0
9,

 a
nd

 
£1

.4
68

M
 c

um
ul

at
iv

e 
sa

vi
ng

s 
by

 M
ar

ch
 ‘1

0 

A
m

be
r-

 M
ed

iu
m

 te
rm

 ta
rg

et
 

S
av

in
gs

 fo
r 2

00
8/

9 
bu

dg
et

 re
du

ce
d 

to
 £

51
4k

 a
s 

pa
rt 

of
 th

e 
M

TF
S

 
re

vi
ew

 

Page 29



  

8.
00

 A
pp

ro
ve

d 
B

y 
C

ou
nc

il 
18

 A
pr

il 
20

07
 

4 

Pr
io

rit
y 

O
ut

co
m

es
 

W
ha

t w
e 

w
ill

 d
o 

th
is

 y
ea

r 
K

ey
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 In

di
ca

to
rs

 
Pr

og
re

ss
 

 
A

ch
ie

ve
 o

ur
 a

nn
ua

l G
er

sh
on

 
ef

fic
ie

nc
y 

ta
rg

et
s 

1.
3 

£1
.7

52
M

 c
um

ul
at

iv
e 

G
er

sh
on

 
ef

fic
ie

nc
y 

sa
vi

ng
s 

by
 

M
ar

ch
 ’0

8.
 

B
lu

e 
-O

ve
r a

ch
ie

ve
d 

a 
ye

ar
 e

ar
ly

. 
S

av
in

gs
 o

f £
 2

.0
69

 s
ec

ur
ed

 

 
A

ch
ie

ve
 a

ss
et

 s
al

es
 s

uf
fic

ie
nt

 to
 

fu
nd

 th
e 

C
ap

ita
l P

ro
gr

am
m

e 

 

1.
4 

3.
48

8M
 o

f G
en

er
al

 F
un

d 
ca

pi
ta

l r
ec

ei
pt

s 
co

nf
irm

ed
 o

r 
re

ce
iv

ed
 b

y 
S

ep
t ’

07
, &

 a
 

fu
rth

er
 £

1.
82

3M
 c

on
fir

m
ed

 b
y 

M
ar

ch
 ’0

8.
 

R
E

D
 - 

R
ep

or
t t

o 
C

ab
in

et
 in

 O
ct

ob
er

 
to

 re
vi

ew
 p

os
iti

on
 a

nd
 to

 c
on

si
de

r 
am

en
di

ng
 c

ap
ita

l r
ec

ei
pt

s 
sc

he
du

le
. 

 

2.
 

R
ef

oc
us

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
ar

ou
nd

 th
e 

ne
ed

s 
of

 o
ur

 c
iti

ze
ns

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 

cu
st

om
er

s 
an

d 
im

pr
ov

e 
cu

st
om

er
 s

at
is

fa
ct

io
n 

w
ith

 b
ot

h 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
th

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 it

 
pr

ov
id

es
 

C
on

tin
ue

 to
 in

te
gr

at
e 

co
un

ci
l 

se
rv

ic
es

 in
to

 o
ur

 c
us

to
m

er
 s

er
vi

ce
 

ce
nt

re
s 

 

2.
1 

P
ha

se
 2

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
in

te
gr

at
ed

 
in

to
 o

ur
 C

us
to

m
er

 S
er

vi
ce

 
C

en
tre

s 
by

 M
ar

 2
00

8 
P

ha
se

 3
 

se
rv

ic
es

 in
te

gr
at

ed
 b

y 
M

ar
 

20
09

 

A
m

be
r -

P
ro

gr
es

s 
in

 a
ch

ie
vi

ng
 th

es
e 

ta
rg

et
s 

ar
e 

co
nt

in
ua

lly
 m

on
ito

re
d 

an
d 

re
vi

ew
ed

 th
ro

ug
h 

1:
2:

1s
 a

nd
 

P
R

Ts
. 

 
O

pe
n 

fa
ce

 to
 fa

ce
 c

us
to

m
er

 s
er

vi
ce

 
ce

nt
re

s 
in

 L
an

ca
st

er
 a

nd
 

M
or

ec
am

be
 T

ow
n 

H
al

ls
 

2.
2 

Fa
ce

 to
 fa

ce
 c

us
to

m
er

 s
er

vi
ce

 
ce

nt
re

s 
in

 L
TH

 a
nd

 M
TH

 b
y 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
7 

G
re

en
 - 

C
om

pl
et

ed
. B

ot
h 

op
en

ed
 to

 
th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 o
n 

1st
 O

ct
ob

er
 

 
Im

pr
ov

e 
cu

st
om

er
 s

at
is

fa
ct

io
n 

le
ve

ls
 

2.
3 

C
us

to
m

er
 s

at
is

fa
ct

io
n 

ra
tin

gs
 

in
 to

p 
qu

ar
til

e 
fo

r d
is

tri
ct

 
co

un
ci

ls
 b

y 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

0 

A
m

be
r -

M
ed

iu
m

 T
er

m
 ta

rg
et

- a
n 

an
nu

al
 s

at
is

fa
ct

io
n 

tra
ck

in
g 

pr
oc

es
s 

is
 b

ei
ng

 d
ev

el
op

ed
  

  

Page 30



  

8.
00

 A
pp

ro
ve

d 
B

y 
C

ou
nc

il 
18

 A
pr

il 
20

07
 

5 

M
ED

IU
M

 T
ER

M
 O

B
JE

C
TI

VE
 

To
 m

ak
e 

ou
r D

is
tr

ic
t a

 c
le

an
er

, h
ea

lth
ie

r p
la

ce
 

 R
es

id
en

ts
’ s

at
is

fa
ct

io
n 

w
ith

 s
tre

et
 c

le
an

lin
es

s 
ha

s 
In

cr
ea

se
d 

to
 7

2%
 (a

llo
w

in
g 

fo
r d

ep
riv

at
io

n 
in

di
ce

s 
ad

ju
st

m
en

t) 
in

 a
 re

ce
nt

 s
ur

ve
y.

 R
es

id
en

ts
 s

at
is

fa
ct

io
n 

w
ith

 o
ur

 w
as

te
 c

ol
le

ct
io

n 
se

rv
ic

e 
is

 8
1%

 O
ur

 re
si

de
nt

s 
st

ill
 w

an
t t

o 
se

e 
hi

gh
er

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 a

nd
 w

e 
w

an
t t

o 
im

pr
ov

e 
fu

rth
er

  

 7
1%

 o
f 

re
si

de
nt

s 
ar

e 
sa

tis
fie

d 
w

ith
 r

ec
yc

lin
g 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s,
 a

nd
 w

e 
ha

ve
 m

et
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t 

ta
rg

et
s.

  
Th

e 
on

go
in

g 
ro

ll-
ou

t 
of

 t
he

 3
 s

tre
am

 w
as

te
 

co
lle

ct
io

n 
w

ill 
be

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 b

y 
20

08
/9

, a
nd

 fr
om

 th
is

 y
ea

r, 
w

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
co

lle
ct

in
g 

pl
as

tic
 b

ot
tle

s 
as

 a
 re

cy
cl

ab
le

 it
em

.  
B

ut
 w

e 
kn

ow
 o

ur
 re

si
de

nt
s 

w
an

t u
s 

to
 

do
 s

til
l m

or
e.

  W
e 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
 th

at
 th

is
 is

 a
 h

ig
h 

pr
io

rit
y 

fo
r t

he
m

, s
o 

it 
m

us
t a

ls
o 

be
 a

 h
ig

h 
pr

io
rit

y 
fo

r t
he

 C
ou

nc
il.

 

Im
pr

ov
in

g 
th

e 
cl

ea
nl

in
es

s 
of

 o
ur

 s
tre

et
s 

an
d 

op
en

 s
pa

ce
s 

co
nt

in
ue

s 
to

 b
e 

an
 o

ve
r-

rid
in

g 
pr

io
rit

y 
fo

r t
hi

s 
C

ou
nc

il.
 

Li
nk

 to
 th

e 
C

om
m

un
ity

 S
tr

at
eg

y:
 U

si
ng

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 W

is
el

y;
 M

ee
tin

g 
E

ss
en

tia
l N

ee
ds

; F
un

, L
ei

su
re

 a
nd

 C
re

at
iv

ity
 

 
Pr

io
rit

y 
O

ut
co

m
es

 
W

ha
t w

e 
w

ill
 d

o 
th

is
 y

ea
r 

K
ey

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 In
di

ca
to

rs
 

Pr
og

re
ss

 

3 
C

le
an

er
 s

tre
et

s 
an

d 
pu

bl
ic

 o
pe

n 
sp

ac
es

 
 

Im
pr

ov
in

g 
st

re
et

 c
le

an
lin

es
s 

3.
1 

R
ed

uc
e 

th
e 

am
ou

nt
 o

f r
el

ev
an

t 
la

nd
 w

ith
 d

ep
os

its
 o

f 
lit

te
r/d

et
rit

us
 a

t a
n 

ac
ce

pt
ab

le
 

le
ve

l f
ro

m
 1

8%
 to

 1
5%

 b
y 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
8 

A
m

be
r-

 O
n 

tra
ck

 to
 h

it 
ta

rg
et

 

 
U

se
 e

nf
or

ce
m

en
t a

nd
 e

du
ca

tio
n 

as
 

a 
m

ea
ns

 o
f a

lte
rin

g 
pe

op
le

’s
 

be
ha

vi
ou

r 

3.
2 

In
cr

ea
se

 N
um

be
r o

f F
ix

ed
 

P
en

al
ty

 N
ot

ic
es

 is
su

ed
 in

 
20

07
/8

 &
 R

ed
uc

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f F

ly
 

tip
pi

ng
 in

ci
de

nt
s 

by
 2

5%
 in

 
20

07
/8

 

A
m

be
r -

 O
n 

tra
ck

 to
 h

it 
ta

rg
et

 

4 
R

ed
uc

e 
w

as
te

 in
 th

e 
di

st
ric

t b
y 

re
cy

cl
in

g 
an

d 
re

-u
se

 
C

om
pl

et
e 

pl
an

ne
d 

ph
as

es
 o

f t
he

 
in

tro
du

ct
io

n 
of

 w
he

el
ed

 b
in

s 
an

d 
ke

rb
si

de
 re

cy
cl

in
g.

 P
ha

se
 5

 b
y 

S
ep

t 
20

07
 a

nd
 P

ha
se

 6
 b

y 
S

ep
t 2

00
8 

4.
1 

In
cr

ea
se

 %
 o

f h
ou

se
ho

ld
 w

as
te

 
re

cy
cl

ed
 a

nd
 c

om
po

st
ed

 fr
om

 
25

%
 in

 2
00

6/
07

 to
 2

8%
 in

 
20

07
/0

8 
(B

V
82

a&
b)

 

A
m

be
r -

 P
ha

se
 5

 im
pl

em
en

te
d 

on
 

sc
he

du
le

. P
ha

se
 6

 o
n 

tra
ck

 

Page 31



  

8.
00

 A
pp

ro
ve

d 
B

y 
C

ou
nc

il 
18

 A
pr

il 
20

07
 

6 

Pr
io

rit
y 

O
ut

co
m

es
 

W
ha

t w
e 

w
ill

 d
o 

th
is

 y
ea

r 
K

ey
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 In

di
ca

to
rs

 
Pr

og
re

ss
 

 
 

4.
2 

M
ai

nt
ai

n 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 fo
r 

co
lle

ct
in

g 
Kg

 o
f h

ou
se

ho
ld

 
w

as
te

 (p
er

 h
ea

d)
  w

ith
in

 th
e 

to
p 

na
tio

na
l q

ua
rti

le
  

A
m

be
r -

 O
n 

tra
ck

 to
 h

it 
ta

rg
et

 

 
In

tro
du

ce
 p

la
st

ic
s 

re
cy

cl
in

g 
4.

3 
P

ha
se

d 
P

la
st

ic
s 

R
ec

yc
lin

g 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
by

 S
ep

t 2
00

7 
G

re
en

 -I
nt

ro
du

ce
d 

on
 s

ch
ed

ul
e 

 
S

pe
ci

al
 c

ol
le

ct
io

n 
se

rv
ic

e 
de

liv
er

ed
 

th
ro

ug
h 

B
ul

ky
 M

at
te

rs
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

4.
4 

C
on

tin
ue

 to
 re

us
e/

re
cy

cl
e 

at
 

le
as

t 4
0%

 o
f a

ll 
bu

lk
y 

w
as

te
 

co
lle

ct
ed

 

A
m

be
r -

 O
n 

tra
ck

 to
 h

it 
ta

rg
et

 

  

Page 32



  

8.
00

 A
pp

ro
ve

d 
B

y 
C

ou
nc

il 
18

 A
pr

il 
20

07
 

7 

M
ED

IU
M

 T
ER

M
 O

B
JE

C
TI

VE
 

To
 re

du
ce

 c
rim

e 
an

d 
th

e 
fe

ar
 o

f c
rim

e 
 Ta

ck
lin

g 
cr

im
e,

 th
e 

fe
ar

 o
f c

rim
e 

an
d 

an
ti-

so
ci

al
 b

eh
av

io
ur

 a
re

 o
f p

ar
am

ou
nt

 im
po

rta
nc

e 
to

 th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 a

nd
 a

re
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
C

om
m

un
ity

 S
tra

te
gy

 a
s 

ke
y 

pr
io

rit
ie

s.
  5

9%
 o

f o
ur

 re
si

de
nt

s 
be

lie
ve

 th
at

 a
 lo

w
 le

ve
l o

f c
rim

e 
is

 th
e 

m
os

t i
m

po
rta

nt
 th

in
g 

in
 m

ak
in

g 
ou

r d
is

tri
ct

 a
 g

oo
d 

pl
ac

e 
to

 li
ve

. 

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 p

la
y 

a 
le

ad
in

g 
ro

le
 in

 th
e 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

af
et

y 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 in

 ta
ck

lin
g 

cr
im

in
al

 d
am

ag
e 

an
d 

al
co

ho
l r

el
at

ed
 v

io
le

nc
e 

in
 th

e 
di

st
ric

t. 

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

is
 d

oi
ng

 e
ve

n 
m

or
e 

to
 m

ai
ns

tre
am

 c
om

m
un

ity
 s

af
et

y 
ef

fe
ct

iv
el

y 
w

ith
in

 C
ou

nc
il 

S
er

vi
ce

 B
us

in
es

s 
P

la
ns

. 
 W

e 
w

ill
 f

oc
us

 m
or

e 
st

ro
ng

ly
 o

n 
en

fo
rc

em
en

t i
n 

th
e 

co
m

in
g 

ye
ar

. 
Li

nk
 to

 th
e 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

tr
at

eg
y:

 M
ee

tin
g 

E
ss

en
tia

l N
ee

ds
 

 
Pr

io
rit

y 
O

ut
co

m
es

 
W

ha
t w

e 
w

ill
 d

o 
th

is
 y

ea
r 

K
ey

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 In
di

ca
to

rs
 

Pr
og

re
ss

 

5 
To

 re
du

ce
 C

rim
e 

an
d 

th
e 

Fe
ar

 
of

 C
rim

e 
an

d 
to

 h
el

p 
re

si
de

nt
s 

fe
el

 s
af

er
 in

 th
ei

r c
om

m
un

iti
es

. 

W
or

k 
w

ith
 o

ur
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

to
 re

du
ce

 th
e 

fe
ar

 o
f c

rim
e,

 a
nd

 th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f 
cr

im
e 

an
d 

di
so

rd
er

 in
ci

de
nt

s 
w

ith
in

 
th

e 
di

st
ric

t 

5.
1 

R
ed

uc
e 

al
l c

rim
e 

in
 D

is
tri

ct
 b

y 
be

tw
ee

n 
16

%
 -1

9%
 b

y 
20

08
 

(P
S

A
1)

 fr
om

 th
e 

ba
se

lin
e 

fig
ur

es
 e

st
ab

lis
he

d 
in

 2
00

5 

A
m

be
r -

 O
n 

tra
ck

 to
 h

it 
ta

rg
et

 

 
B

e 
a 

ke
y 

pa
rtn

er
 in

 th
e 

ne
w

ly
 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

M
ul

ti 
A

ge
nc

y 
P

ro
bl

em
 

S
ol

vi
ng

 (M
A

P
S

) t
ea

m
 

S
am

e 
as

 5
.1

 a
bo

ve
 

G
re

en
 - 

E
ffe

ct
iv

e 
w

or
ki

ng
 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d.

 N
ew

 M
A

P
 o

ffi
ce

s 
op

en
ed

 a
nd

 s
ta

ff 
re

lo
ca

te
d.

  

G
re

en
 - 

A
pp

ro
ve

d 
by

 L
S

P
 in

 S
ep

t 
20

07
 

6 
R

ed
uc

e 
al

co
ho

l r
el

at
ed

 v
io

le
nc

e 
an

d 
ha

rm
; r

ed
uc

e 
al

co
ho

l 
re

la
te

d 
an

ti-
so

ci
al

 b
eh

av
io

ur
. 

W
or

k 
w

ith
 th

e 
P

ol
ic

e,
 P

rim
ar

y 
C

ar
e 

Tr
us

t a
nd

 o
th

er
 a

ge
nc

ie
s 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
C

om
m

un
ity

 s
af

et
y 

pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
 to

 
ad

dr
es

s 
is

su
es

 a
ro

un
d 

al
co

ho
l 

re
la

te
d 

vi
ol

en
ce

 a
nd

 h
ar

m
 in

 li
ne

 
w

ith
 th

e 
A

lc
oh

ol
 R

el
at

ed
 H

ar
m

 
S

tra
te

gy
 

6.
1 

D
ev

el
op

 a
nd

 im
pl

em
en

t A
lc

oh
ol

 
R

el
at

ed
 H

ar
m

 S
tra

te
gy

 

A
m

be
r -

 Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
un

de
rw

ay
 

Page 33



  

8.
00

 A
pp

ro
ve

d 
B

y 
C

ou
nc

il 
18

 A
pr

il 
20

07
 

8 

Pr
io

rit
y 

O
ut

co
m

es
 

W
ha

t w
e 

w
ill

 d
o 

th
is

 y
ea

r 
K

ey
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 In

di
ca

to
rs

 
Pr

og
re

ss
 

 
W

or
k 

w
ith

 o
th

er
 a

ge
nc

ie
s 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 L

ic
en

si
ng

 A
ct

 2
00

3 
lic

en
sa

bl
e 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 a
re

 p
ro

pe
rly

 li
ce

ns
ed

 a
nd

 
th

at
 li

ce
nc

e 
co

nd
iti

on
s 

ar
e 

co
m

pl
ie

d 
w

ith
. 

6.
2 

‘B
es

t B
ar

 N
on

e’
 s

ch
em

e 
ro

lle
d 

ou
t a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
di

st
ric

t o
ve

r t
he

 
ye

ar
. 

A
m

be
r -

 P
ol

ic
e 

le
d 

in
iti

at
iv

e 
w

ith
 

lic
en

si
ng

 s
up

po
rt.

 T
he

 s
ch

em
e 

is
 

vo
lu

nt
ar

y 
fo

r l
ic

en
se

d 
pr

em
is

es
.  

14
 

ha
ve

 a
pp

lie
d 

to
 b

e 
ac

cr
ed

ite
d 

to
 

da
te

, a
nd

 s
om

e 
of

 th
es

e 
ha

ve
 fa

ile
d.

  
P

er
ha

ps
 m

or
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
ly

, t
he

 M
ul

ti 
A

ge
nc

y 
Li

ce
ns

in
g 

Te
am

 (M
A

LT
) 

pr
oa

ct
iv

el
y 

de
al

s 
w

ith
 p

ro
bl

em
 

pr
em

is
es

 in
 a

 ro
bu

st
 w

ay
. 

7 
R

ed
uc

e 
do

m
es

tic
 v

io
le

nc
e 

 
W

or
k 

in
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 in

 li
ne

 w
ith

 th
e 

D
om

es
tic

 A
bu

se
 S

tra
te

gy
 

7.
1 

 N
um

be
r o

f p
os

iti
ve

 re
sp

on
se

s 
to

 th
e 

B
V

P
I2

25
 C

he
ck

lis
t 

(T
ar

ge
t s

co
re

 8
 b

y 
A

pr
il 

20
08

) 

A
m

be
r -

 D
V

 C
o-

or
di

na
to

r i
n 

po
st

 to
 

ta
ke

 th
e 

w
or

k 
fo

rw
ar

d 

 

Page 34



  

8.
00

 A
pp

ro
ve

d 
B

y 
C

ou
nc

il 
18

 A
pr

il 
20

07
 

9 

 M
ED

IU
M

 T
ER

M
 O

B
JE

C
TI

VE
  

To
 le

ad
 th

e 
re

ge
ne

ra
tio

n 
of

 o
ur

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
 W

e 
ar

e 
no

w
 d

el
iv

er
in

g 
m

aj
or

 re
ge

ne
ra

tio
n 

pr
og

ra
m

m
es

 in
 L

an
ca

st
er

, M
or

ec
am

be
, a

nd
 C

ar
nf

or
th

. D
ur

in
g 

th
is

 c
om

in
g 

ye
ar

, t
he

 fu
tu

re
 s

ha
pe

 o
f t

he
 C

an
al

 
C

or
rid

or
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t w

ill
 b

e 
de

ci
de

d.
   

Th
e 

V
is

io
n 

B
oa

rd
 h

as
 n

ow
 p

ro
du

ce
d 

its
 e

co
no

m
ic

 v
is

io
n 

fo
r t

he
 d

is
tri

ct
 a

nd
 w

e 
an

d 
ou

r p
ar

tn
er

s 
w

ill
 ta

ke
 th

at
 v

is
io

n 
in

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
 in

 o
ur

 p
la

nn
in

g 
fo

r t
he

 
fu

tu
re

. 

W
e 

re
co

gn
is

e 
th

at
 T

ou
ris

m
 c

on
tin

ue
s 

to
 p

la
y 

an
  i

m
po

rta
nt

 ro
le

 in
 th

e 
ec

on
om

y 
of

 th
e 

di
st

ric
t a

nd
 w

e 
w

ill
 c

on
tin

ue
 to

 s
up

po
rt 

th
at

 a
ct

iv
ity

.  

Li
nk

 to
 th

e 
C

om
m

un
ity

 S
tr

at
eg

y:
 E

co
no

m
y 

an
d 

W
or

k;
 P

os
iti

ve
 P

la
nn

in
g 

an
d 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t; 
Fu

n,
 L

ei
su

re
 a

nd
 C

re
at

iv
ity

 
 

Pr
io

rit
y 

O
ut

co
m

es
 

W
ha

t w
e 

w
ill

 d
o 

th
is

 y
ea

r 
K

ey
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 In

di
ca

to
rs

 
Pr

og
re

ss
 

8 
To

 m
ak

e 
be

st
 u

se
 o

f E
ur

op
ea

n 
E

R
D

F 
an

d 
ot

he
r f

un
di

ng
 w

ith
in

 
th

e 
E

co
no

m
ic

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Zo

ne
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 n
ew

 a
nd

 
re

fu
rb

is
he

d 
in

di
vi

du
al

 a
nd

 
co

m
m

er
ci

al
 s

pa
ce

 

Tr
an

sf
er

 L
un

es
id

e 
E

as
t t

o 
ou

r 
pr

iv
at

e 
se

ct
or

 p
ar

tn
er

 a
nd

 o
ve

rs
ee

 
re

m
ed

ia
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

co
nt

am
in

at
ed

 s
ite

 

8.
1 

La
nd

 tr
an

sf
er

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 b

y 
Ju

ly
 2

00
7 

A
m

be
r -

Tr
an

sf
er

 d
at

e 
sl

ip
pe

d 
du

e 
to

 
pr

ol
on

ge
d 

le
ga

l p
ro

ce
ss

 re
la

tin
g 

to
 

th
e 

tra
ns

fe
r o

f N
et

w
or

k 
ra

il 
la

nd
.  

Li
ce

nc
e 

ag
re

em
en

t i
n 

pl
ac

e 
to

 a
llo

w
 

de
ve

lo
pe

r a
cc

es
s 

to
 th

e 
si

te
 in

 
ad

va
nc

e 
of

 le
ga

l t
ra

ns
fe

r s
o 

en
ab

lin
g 

w
or

ks
 c

an
 ta

ke
 p

la
ce

 

 
S

to
re

y 
In

st
itu

te
 

8.
2 

S
ta

rt 
on

 c
om

m
er

ci
al

 s
pa

ce
 b

y 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
7 

B
lu

e 
- C

on
tra

ct
or

s 
on

 s
ite

 in
 O

ct
ob

er
 

20
07

 

Page 35



  

8.
00

 A
pp

ro
ve

d 
B

y 
C

ou
nc

il 
18

 A
pr

il 
20

07
 

10
 

Pr
io

rit
y 

O
ut

co
m

es
 

W
ha

t w
e 

w
ill

 d
o 

th
is

 y
ea

r 
K

ey
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 In

di
ca

to
rs

 
Pr

og
re

ss
 

 
La

nc
as

te
r S

ci
en

ce
 P

ar
k 

8.
3 

C
on

tra
ct

 a
gr

ee
d 

w
ith

 p
re

fe
rr

ed
 

pa
rtn

er
 a

nd
 w

or
k 

st
ar

ts
 o

n 
si

te
 

by
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
00

7 

A
m

be
r -

 D
ev

el
op

er
 re

cr
ui

tm
en

t 
un

de
rw

ay
 b

ut
 n

ot
 y

et
 c

on
cl

ud
ed

.  
P

la
nn

in
g 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

ne
ed

s 
to

 b
e 

in
 

pl
ac

e 
an

d 
th

is
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

de
la

ye
d 

in
 

or
de

r t
o 

de
al

 w
ith

 h
ig

hw
ay

s 
is

su
es

.  
A

pp
lic

at
io

n 
no

w
 d

ue
 to

 b
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 in

 N
ov

 0
7 

 
 

8.
4 

Fu
nd

in
g 

ap
pr

ov
al

 fr
om

 N
W

D
A

 
in

 p
la

ce
 a

nd
 s

ite
 a

cq
ui

re
d 

by
 

A
ug

us
t 2

00
7 

A
m

be
r -

 F
un

di
ng

 c
on

fir
m

ed
 in

 
N

W
D

A
 in

ve
st

m
en

t p
la

n 
an

d 
in

di
vi

du
al

 p
ro

je
ct

 a
pp

ro
va

ls
 n

ow
 

be
in

g 
co

nf
irm

ed
 a

nd
 d

is
cu

ss
io

n 
on

go
in

g 
ab

ou
t L

an
ca

st
er

 ta
ki

ng
 u

p 
un

de
rs

pe
nd

 fr
om

 o
th

er
 a

re
as

 

 
R

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

al
ig

ne
d 

to
 

th
e 

w
or

k 
of

 th
e 

V
is

io
n 

Bo
ar

d 
8.

5 
N

W
D

A
 fu

nd
s 

fo
r V

is
io

n 
B

oa
rd

 
w

or
k 

ag
re

ed
 fo

r 2
00

7/
08

 b
y 

M
ay

 2
00

7 

G
re

en
 - 

Fu
nd

in
g 

ag
re

ed
 

 
 

8.
6 

Fu
ll 

S
tra

te
gi

c 
In

ve
st

m
en

t P
la

n 
co

st
s 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

e 
su

b 
re

gi
on

al
 e

co
no

m
ic

 s
tra

te
gy

 b
y 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
08

 

B
lu

e 
-A

gr
ee

d 
at

 L
E

P
 b

oa
rd

 in
 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
7 

9 
To

 re
ge

ne
ra

te
 th

e 
W

es
t E

nd
 o

f 
M

or
ec

am
be

 
P

ro
gr

es
s 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

W
es

t E
nd

 M
as

te
rp

la
n 

9.
1 

P
ro

m
en

ad
e 

G
ar

de
ns

 S
ch

em
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 b

y 
M

ay
 2

00
7 

G
re

en
 - 

G
ar

de
ns

 fo
rm

al
ly

 o
pe

ne
d 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
7 

 

10
 

A
 v

ar
ie

d 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
of

 fe
st

iv
al

s 
an

d 
ev

en
ts

 th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 th

e 
di

st
ric

t 

Im
pl

em
en

t o
ur

 to
ur

is
m

 s
tra

te
gy

 
10

.1
 I

nc
re

as
e 

to
ur

is
t s

pe
nd

 b
y 

an
 

av
er

ag
e 

of
 5

%
 a

nn
ua

lly
 a

cr
os

s 
al

l c
at

eg
or

ie
s 

of
 v

is
ito

rs
 

R
E

D
 - 

S
TE

A
M

 d
at

a 
sh

ow
s 

th
at

 
vi

si
to

r s
pe

nd
 d

ec
lin

ed
 b

y 
1%

 fr
om

 
20

05
 to

 2
00

6 

Page 36



  

8.
00

 A
pp

ro
ve

d 
B

y 
C

ou
nc

il 
18

 A
pr

il 
20

07
 

11
 

Pr
io

rit
y 

O
ut

co
m

es
 

W
ha

t w
e 

w
ill

 d
o 

th
is

 y
ea

r 
K

ey
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 In

di
ca

to
rs

 
Pr

og
re

ss
 

 
To

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 w

or
k 

w
ith

 b
ot

h 
th

e 
pr

iv
at

e 
se

ct
or

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

 to
 d

ev
el

op
 a

 
su

cc
es

sf
ul

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e.

 

10
.2

 I
nc

re
as

e 
th

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f s

ta
yi

ng
 

vi
si

to
rs

 b
y 

3%
 a

nn
ua

lly
 

G
re

en
 –

 N
um

be
r o

f s
ta

yi
ng

 v
is

ito
rs

 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

by
 4

%
 fr

om
 2

00
5 

to
 2

00
6 

(S
ou

rc
e 

: S
TE

A
M

 d
at

a)
 

 
 

10
.3

 A
ch

ie
ve

 8
0%

 g
oo

d 
or

 e
xc

el
le

nt
 

on
 q

ua
lit

y 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

 T
IC

 
cu

st
om

er
 s

at
is

fa
ct

io
n 

fo
rm

s 

G
re

en
 –

 8
0%

 a
ch

ie
ve

d 
go

od
 o

r 
ex

ce
lle

nt
 J

ul
y 

20
07

  

 
R

ev
ie

w
 th

e 
Fe

st
iv

al
s 

In
no

va
tio

n 
Fu

nd
 

10
.4

  F
un

d 
op

er
at

io
n 

re
vi

ew
ed

 a
nd

 
ne

w
 g

ui
de

lin
es

 fo
r b

id
s 

to
 b

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

 b
y 

Ju
ly

 2
00

7 

G
re

en
 –

 F
un

d 
op

er
at

io
n 

re
vi

ew
ed

 
an

d 
ne

w
 g

ui
da

nc
e 

fo
r b

id
s 

fo
r 

20
08

/0
9 

is
su

ed
 J

ul
y 

20
07

 

 
G

re
en

 F
la

g 
st

at
us

 fo
r H

ap
py

 M
ou

nt
 

P
ar

k 
10

.5
  G

re
en

 F
la

g 
bi

d 
su

bm
itt

ed
 a

nd
 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 b

y 
Ju

ly
 2

00
7 

G
re

en
 - 

G
re

en
 F

la
g 

st
at

us
 a

cq
ui

re
d 

Ju
ly

 2
00

7 

11
 

To
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
re

ta
il,

 le
is

ur
e 

an
d 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l o

ffe
rin

g 
in

 
La

nc
as

te
r c

ity
 c

en
tre

 

Ta
ke

 fo
rw

ar
d 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t p

la
ns

 fo
r 

th
e 

C
an

al
 C

or
rid

or
 in

 L
an

ca
st

er
 

11
.1

 
To

 w
or

k 
w

ith
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

to
 

en
su

re
 a

n 
ou

tli
ne

 p
la

nn
in

g 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
is

 s
ub

m
itt

ed
 b

y 
A

pr
il 

20
07

 

G
re

en
 - 

O
ut

lin
e 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

su
bm

itt
ed

 

 
 

11
.2

 
To

 e
ns

ur
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

 
co

m
m

itt
ee

 c
on

si
de

r t
he

 
ou

tli
ne

 a
pp

lic
at

io
n 

by
 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
7 

A
m

be
r –

 a
pp

lic
at

io
n 

de
la

ye
d 

to
 

al
lo

w
 fo

r f
ur

th
er

 te
ch

ni
ca

l w
or

k 
on

 
re

ta
il 

im
pa

ct
 a

nd
 h

ig
hw

ay
s.

  
A

pp
lic

at
io

n 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 to

 b
e 

at
 

co
m

m
itt

ee
 b

y 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

08
 

Page 37



  

8.
00

 A
pp

ro
ve

d 
B

y 
C

ou
nc

il 
18

 A
pr

il 
20

07
 

12
 

Pr
io

rit
y 

O
ut

co
m

es
 

W
ha

t w
e 

w
ill

 d
o 

th
is

 y
ea

r 
K

ey
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 In

di
ca

to
rs

 
Pr

og
re

ss
 

12
 

To
 re

ge
ne

ra
te

 C
ar

nf
or

th
 a

nd
 it

s 
ru

ra
l h

in
te

rla
nd

  
Im

pl
em

en
t t

he
 C

ar
nf

or
th

 M
ar

ke
t 

To
w

ns
 In

iti
at

iv
e 

A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n 
12

.1
 

In
cr

ea
se

 o
ve

ra
ll 

sa
tis

fa
ct

io
n 

w
ith

 th
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
of

 
C

ar
nf

or
th

 A
re

a 
R

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
 fr

om
 c

ur
re

nt
 

ba
se

lin
e 

A
m

be
r –

 b
as

el
in

e 
sa

tis
fa

ct
io

n 
su

rv
ey

 c
om

pl
et

ed
, b

as
el

in
e 

up
da

te
 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
w

ar
ds

 th
e 

en
d 

of
 th

e 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
to

 d
em

on
st

ra
te

 c
ha

ng
e 

Page 38



  

8.
00

 A
pp

ro
ve

d 
B

y 
C

ou
nc

il 
18

 A
pr

il 
20

07
 

13
 

M
ED

IU
M

 T
ER

M
 O

B
JE

C
TI

VE
  

To
 s

up
po

rt
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 

 In
 M

or
ec

am
be

 w
e 

ar
e 

us
in

g 
N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 M
an

ag
em

en
t t

o 
de

liv
er

 b
ot

h 
so

ci
al

 a
nd

 p
hy

si
ca

l r
eg

en
er

at
io

n.
 T

he
re

 a
re

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
to

 w
or

k 
m

or
e 

cl
os

el
y 

w
ith

 n
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
s,

 r
ol

lin
g 

ou
t 

th
is

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
ac

ro
ss

 t
he

 d
is

tri
ct

 s
o 

th
at

 d
ec

is
io

ns
 c

an
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

at
 a

 lo
ca

l l
ev

el
. 

Th
is

 is
 a

n 
ov

er
-r

id
in

g 
pr

io
rit

y 
fo

r 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il.
 

Le
ve

ls
 o

f h
om

el
es

sn
es

s 
(a

nd
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

ly
, h

om
el

es
s 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

) a
re

 o
f c

on
ce

rn
 a

nd
 a

s 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
H

ou
si

ng
 s

to
ck

 c
on

tin
ue

s 
to

 re
du

ce
, i

t i
s 

es
se

nt
ia

l 
to

 w
or

k 
w

ith
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

to
 d

ev
el

op
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 s

ol
ut

io
ns

.  

Im
pr

ov
in

g 
ho

us
in

g 
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

di
st

ric
t b

y 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
 fo

r y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
an

d 
fa

m
ili

es
 is

 a
 h

ig
h 

pr
io

rit
y.

 

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

is
 c

on
si

de
rin

g 
ho

w
 to

 b
es

t r
es

po
nd

 a
nd

 a
da

pt
 to

 th
e 

ch
al

le
ng

es
 o

f c
lim

at
e 

ch
an

ge
 a

nd
 th

is
 is

su
e 

w
ill

 in
cr

ea
si

ng
ly

 im
pa

ct
 u

po
n 

ou
r f

ut
ur

e 
pl

an
s 

an
d 

po
lic

ie
s.

   

Li
nk

 to
 th

e 
C

om
m

un
ity

 S
tr

at
eg

y:
 M

ee
tin

g 
E

ss
en

tia
l N

ee
ds

; U
si

ng
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 W
is

el
y 

 
Pr

io
rit

y 
O

ut
co

m
es

 
W

ha
t w

e 
w

ill
 d

o 
th

is
 y

ea
r 

K
ey

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 In
di

ca
to

rs
 

Pr
og

re
ss

 

13
 

To
 re

du
ce

 th
e 

am
ou

nt
 o

f 
en

er
gy

 u
se

d 
by

 b
ot

h 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
ho

us
eh

ol
ds

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

di
st

ric
t 

U
nd

er
ta

ke
 a

ll 
w

or
ks

 in
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

E
ne

rg
y 

M
an

ag
em

en
t A

ct
io

n 
P

la
n 

(in
 

05
/0

6 
ou

r e
ne

rg
y 

po
lic

y 
re

su
lte

d 
in

 
to

ta
l s

av
in

gs
 o

f 2
9.

83
 to

nn
es

 o
f 

C
O

2)
 

13
.1

 
R

ed
uc

e 
ov

er
al

l e
ne

rg
y 

us
e 

in
 

C
ou

nc
il 

bu
ild

in
gs

 fr
om

 
6,

56
3,

84
2k

w
h 

(0
5/

06
) t

o 
5,

32
8,

11
4k

w
h 

in
 0

8/
09

 

R
E

D
 In

co
rr

ec
t b

as
el

in
e 

fig
ur

es
 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

th
er

ef
or

e 
ta

rg
et

s 
ne

ed
 

re
vi

si
ng

   

 
E

ne
rg

y 
ef

fic
ie

nc
y 

m
ea

su
re

s 
at

 S
al

t 
A

yr
e 

S
po

rts
 C

en
tre

. 
13

.2
 

R
ed

uc
e 

C
O

2 
em

is
si

on
s 

fro
m

 
C

ou
nc

il 
bu

ild
in

gs
 fr

om
 0

.0
66

6 
(0

5/
06

) t
o 

0.
05

7 
in

 0
8/

09
) 

A
m

be
r -

 M
ed

iu
m

 T
er

m
 T

ar
ge

t. 

 

Page 39



  

8.
00

 A
pp

ro
ve

d 
B

y 
C

ou
nc

il 
18

 A
pr

il 
20

07
 

14
 

Pr
io

rit
y 

O
ut

co
m

es
 

W
ha

t w
e 

w
ill

 d
o 

th
is

 y
ea

r 
K

ey
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 In

di
ca

to
rs

 
Pr

og
re

ss
 

 
Im

pl
em

en
t n

at
io

na
l /

 E
U

 
su

st
ai

na
bi

lit
y 

po
lic

ie
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

pl
an

ni
ng

 d
ec

is
io

ns
 a

nd
 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 B
ui

ld
in

g 
R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
 

13
.3

 
In

cr
ea

se
 th

e 
%

 o
f e

ne
rg

y 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
us

es
 fr

om
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 

so
ur

ce
s 

fro
m

 9
.9

0%
 in

 0
5/

06
 

to
 6

0%
 in

 0
8/

09
 

A
m

be
r –

 M
ed

iu
m

 te
rm

 ta
rg

et
. 

E
ne

rg
y 

co
nt

ra
ct

s 
ar

e 
du

e 
fo

r 
re

ne
w

al
 in

 2
00

8 
an

d 
w

ill
 g

iv
e 

th
e 

op
po

rtu
ni

ty
 to

 m
ee

t t
he

 6
0%

 ta
rg

et
 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
m

em
be

r a
pp

ro
va

l 

G
re

en
 - 

C
ab

in
et

 li
ai

so
n 

G
ro

up
 h

as
 

ag
re

ed
 a

nd
 re

vi
se

d 
Y

ea
r I

 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
. 

 

14
. 

R
ed

uc
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

f  
C

lim
at

e 
C

ha
ng

e 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

D
is

tri
ct

 
E

st
ab

lis
h 

a 
co

m
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 C
ou

nc
il 

w
id

e 
C

lim
at

e 
C

ha
ng

e 
5 

ye
ar

 
S

tra
te

gy
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
C

ab
in

et
 

Li
ai

so
n 

G
ro

up
 

14
.1

 
Im

pl
em

en
t Y

ea
r 1

 a
ct

io
ns

 
fro

m
 th

e 
st

ra
te

gy
 

A
m

be
r -

 S
tra

te
gy

 b
ei

ng
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 
to

 fe
ed

 in
 m

ed
iu

m
 te

rm
 fi

na
nc

ia
l 

pl
an

ni
ng

 p
ro

ce
ss

 

15
 

R
ed

uc
e 

th
e 

ris
k 

of
 fl

oo
di

ng
 

fro
m

 th
e 

se
a.

 
C

om
pl

et
e 

P
ha

se
 6

/7
 o

f t
he

 
M

or
ec

am
be

 C
oa

st
al

 S
ea

 D
ef

en
ce

s 
15

.1
 

C
om

pl
et

e 
P

ha
se

 6
/7

 b
y 

Ju
ly

 
20

07
 

A
m

be
r -

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
w

or
k 

on
go

in
g 

an
d 

on
 tr

ac
k 

fo
r c

os
ts

.  

16
 

C
on

tin
ue

 to
 D

ev
el

op
 

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

di
st

ric
t 

In
tro

du
ce

 in
 th

e 
W

es
t E

nd
 o

f 
M

or
ec

am
be

 
16

.1
 

D
ev

el
op

er
 p

ar
tn

er
 a

pp
oi

nt
ed

 
fo

r t
he

 e
xe

m
pl

ar
 h

ou
si

ng
 

sc
he

m
e 

jo
in

tly
 w

ith
 E

ng
lis

h 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s 

by
 A

ug
us

t 2
00

7 

A
m

be
r -

 p
re

fe
rr

ed
 d

ev
el

op
er

 
id

en
tif

ie
d.

  P
ro

gr
es

s 
w

ai
tin

g 
on

 
ou

tc
om

e 
fro

m
 tr

ea
su

ry
 p

an
el

 re
vi

ew
 

of
 E

P
 b

oa
rd

 d
ec

is
io

n 
to

 a
pp

ro
ve

 
ga

p 
fu

nd
in

g.
  

 
 

16
.2

 
R

ol
l o

ut
 o

f t
he

 fi
rs

t p
ha

se
 o

f 3
 

st
re

am
 w

as
te

 c
ol

le
ct

io
n 

to
 th

e 
W

es
t E

nd
 b

y 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

00
7 

G
re

en
 - 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 

Page 40



  

8.
00

 A
pp

ro
ve

d 
B

y 
C

ou
nc

il 
18

 A
pr

il 
20

07
 

15
 

Pr
io

rit
y 

O
ut

co
m

es
 

W
ha

t w
e 

w
ill

 d
o 

th
is

 y
ea

r 
K

ey
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 In

di
ca

to
rs

 
Pr

og
re

ss
 

17
 

In
cr

ea
se

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 m
or

e 
af

fo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

. 
In

cr
ea

se
 th

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f a

ffo
rd

ab
le

  
un

its
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

in
 b

ot
h 

th
e 

ru
ra

l a
nd

 
ur

ba
n 

ar
ea

s 
pa

rti
cu

la
rly

 b
y 

us
in

g 
pl

an
ni

ng
 p

ow
er

s 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 in

cl
ud

e 
a 

pr
op

or
tio

n 
of

 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 h

om
es

 

17
.1

 
A

 m
in

im
um

 o
f 2

0%
 o

f a
ll 

dw
el

lin
g 

co
m

pl
et

io
ns

 to
 b

e 
af

fo
rd

ab
le

 

A
m

be
r –

 c
om

pl
et

io
ns

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 

ru
nn

in
g 

be
lo

w
 2

0%
 d

ue
 to

 
ne

go
tia

tio
ns

 w
ith

 d
ev

el
op

er
s 

pr
od

uc
in

g 
co

m
m

ut
ed

 s
um

s 
as

 
pr

ef
er

re
d 

ou
tc

om
e 

th
at

 w
ill

 th
en

 
fu

nd
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

w
id

er
 m

ar
ke

t. 
 C

on
si

de
ra

tio
n 

ne
ed

s 
to

 b
e 

gi
ve

n 
to

 c
ha

ng
in

g 
th

e 
ta

rg
et

 to
 

re
fle

ct
 c

ur
re

nt
 p

ra
ct

ic
e.

 

18
 

R
ed

uc
e 

le
ve

ls
 o

f 
ho

m
el

es
sn

es
s 

w
ith

 a
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 
em

ph
as

is
 o

n 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
, 

do
m

es
tic

 v
io

le
nc

e 
an

d 
em

er
ge

nc
y 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n 

R
ed

uc
e 

bo
th

 th
e 

nu
m

be
rs

 
pr

es
en

tin
g 

th
em

se
lv

es
 a

s 
ho

m
el

es
s 

an
d 

th
os

e 
ac

ce
pt

ed
 

18
.1

 
In

cr
ea

se
  t

he
 n

um
be

r o
f 

ho
m

el
es

sn
es

s 
ca

se
s 

su
cc

es
sf

ul
ly

 re
so

lv
ed

 fr
om

 
1.

75
 %

 in
 0

6/
07

 to
 2

%
 in

 
07

/0
8 

(B
V

 2
13

) 

A
m

be
r –

 o
n 

ta
rg

et
 (b

ut
 m

ea
su

re
 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
ca

se
s/

th
ou

sa
nd

) 

 
 

18
.2

 
M

ai
nt

ai
n 

th
e 

le
ve

l o
f r

ep
ea

t 
ho

m
el

es
sn

es
s 

ca
se

s 
at

 0
 in

 
20

07
/0

8 
(B

V
21

4)
 

G
re

en
 –

 m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

at
 0

 a
t p

re
se

nt
 

 
Im

pl
em

en
t  

th
e 

H
M

O
 L

ic
en

si
ng

 
S

ch
em

e 
an

d 
th

e 
H

ou
si

ng
 R

en
ew

al
 

pr
og

ra
m

m
es

 o
pe

ra
tin

g 
in

 th
e 

P
ou

lto
n 

an
d 

th
e 

W
es

t E
nd

 o
f 

M
or

ec
am

be
 

18
.3

 
10

 %
 re

du
ct

io
n 

in
 n

um
be

rs
 o

f 
H

M
O

s 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 b

y 
M

ar
ch

 
20

10
 

A
m

be
r M

ed
iu

m
 T

er
m

 T
ar

ge
t –

  

O
n 

tra
ck

 to
 h

it 
ta

rg
et

 

19
 

D
ev

el
op

 a
 c

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 
co

rp
or

at
e 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 to
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

an
d 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

s 
is

su
es

 

D
ev

el
op

 &
 Im

pl
em

en
t a

 C
&

Y
P

’s
 

st
ra

te
gy

 
19

.1
 

C
hi

ld
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
P

ol
ic

y 
re

vi
se

d 
an

d 
ac

tio
ne

d 
by

 J
ul

y 
20

07
 

G
re

en
 A

pp
ro

ve
d 

by
 C

ab
in

et
 J

ul
y 

07
 

Page 41



  

8.
00

 A
pp

ro
ve

d 
B

y 
C

ou
nc

il 
18

 A
pr

il 
20

07
 

16
 

Pr
io

rit
y 

O
ut

co
m

es
 

W
ha

t w
e 

w
ill

 d
o 

th
is

 y
ea

r 
K

ey
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 In

di
ca

to
rs

 
Pr

og
re

ss
 

 
In

tro
du

ce
 C

&
Y

P
 P

an
el

s 
19

.2
 

Im
pl

em
en

t A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n 
re

sp
on

di
ng

 to
 “W

or
ki

ng
 in

 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 to

 D
el

iv
er

 
Im

pr
ov

ed
 O

ut
co

m
es

 fo
r 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
Y

ou
ng

 P
eo

pl
e”

 
as

se
ss

m
en

t; 
by

 J
un

e 
20

07
 

A
m

be
r -

 A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n 
be

in
g 

im
pl

em
en

te
d.

 N
ot

 a
ll 

ac
tio

ns
 

co
m

pl
et

ed
.  

  

Page 42



  

8.
00

 A
pp

ro
ve

d 
B

y 
C

ou
nc

il 
18

 A
pr

il 
20

07
 

17
 

M
ED

IU
M

 T
ER

M
 O

B
JE

C
TI

VE
 

To
 c

on
tin

ue
 to

 im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

 
Th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t P

la
n 

pr
ov

id
es

 a
 c

le
ar

 d
ire

ct
io

n 
fo

r 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
to

 g
o 

fo
rw

ar
d.

 T
he

 P
la

n 
is

 c
on

st
an

tly
 u

nd
er

 r
ev

ie
w

 a
s 

ci
rc

um
st

an
ce

s 
ch

an
ge

 
bu

t m
uc

h 
ha

s 
al

re
ad

y 
be

en
 a

ch
ie

ve
d.

 W
e 

re
co

gn
is

e 
th

er
e 

is
 s

til
l m

uc
h 

m
or

e 
w

e 
ca

n 
be

 d
oi

ng
 to

 im
pr

ov
e 

ou
r o

rg
an

is
at

io
n.

 

W
e 

ha
ve

 a
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l, 

co
m

m
itt

ed
 w

or
k-

fo
rc

e.
 W

he
n 

st
af

f k
no

w
 w

ha
t i

s 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 o

f t
he

m
, f

ee
l l

is
te

ne
d 

to
, a

nd
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
ly

 s
ki

lle
d 

th
ey

 w
ill

 b
e 

m
or

e 
sa

tis
fie

d 
w

ith
 th

ei
r j

ob
. F

ur
th

er
, t

he
re

 is
 a

 d
em

on
st

ra
bl

e 
lin

k 
be

tw
ee

n 
st

af
f s

at
is

fa
ct

io
n 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t i

n 
se

rv
ic

e 
an

d 
C

ou
nc

il 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

.  
A

s 
on

e 
of

 
th

e 
la

rg
es

t e
m

pl
oy

er
s 

in
 th

e 
di

st
ric

t i
t i

s 
rig

ht
 th

at
 w

e 
m

ax
im

is
e 

ou
r m

os
t v

al
ua

bl
e 

re
so

ur
ce

, o
ur

 s
ta

ff,
 fo

r t
he

 b
en

ef
it 

of
 th

e 
D

is
tri

ct
.  

Li
nk

 to
 th

e 
C

om
m

un
ity

 S
tr

at
eg

y:
 T

ak
in

g 
P

ar
t 

 
Pr

io
rit

y 
O

ut
co

m
es

 
W

ha
t w

e 
w

ill
 d

o 
th

is
 y

ea
r 

K
ey

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 In
di

ca
to

rs
 

Pr
og

re
ss

 

20
 

C
ou

nc
il 

co
nt

in
ue

s 
to

 im
pr

ov
e;

 
ex

te
rn

al
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t v
al

id
at

es
 

th
at

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t. 

D
el

iv
er

 th
e 

ta
rg

et
s 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t P

la
n 

20
.1

 
%

 o
f I

m
p 

P
la

n 
ta

rg
et

s 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 (T

ar
ge

t 1
00

%
) i

n 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 w
ith

 A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n 
de

ad
lin

es
 

C
or

po
ra

te
 P

la
n 

ha
s 

no
w

 re
pl

ac
ed

 
th

e 
C

or
po

ra
te

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
t P

la
n 

 
To

 re
du

ce
 th

e 
av

er
ag

e 
da

ys
 lo

st
 to

 
si

ck
ne

ss
 

20
.2

 
To

 re
du

ce
 th

e 
av

er
ag

e 
da

ys
 

lo
st

 to
 s

ic
kn

es
s 

 to
 1

0 
da

ys
 

pe
r e

m
pl

oy
ee

 b
y 

M
ar

 2
00

8 

A
m

be
r O

n 
ta

rg
et

 to
 d

at
e 

.  
Th

e 
fig

ur
e 

pe
r e

m
pl

oy
ee

 a
s 

at
 th

e 
en

d 
of

 
Ju

ly
 2

00
7 

w
as

 3
.4

1 
da

ys
, a

nd
 th

is
 is

 
on

 ta
rg

et
.  

 

 
U

nd
er

ta
ke

 a
 p

ay
 a

nd
 g

ra
di

ng
 re

vi
ew

 
of

 th
e 

w
or

kf
or

ce
 

20
.3

 
C

om
pl

et
io

n 
of

 th
e 

re
vi

ew
 a

nd
 

im
pl

em
en

t n
ew

 p
ay

 s
ys

te
m

 
by

 A
pr

il 
20

08
 

A
m

be
r O

n 
tra

ck
 to

 c
om

pl
et

e 
in

te
rv

ie
w

s 
by

 e
nd

 o
f O

ct
ob

er
 2

00
7.

 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 n
ew

 p
ay

 s
ch

em
e 

w
ill

 d
ep

en
d 

on
 th

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
f 

m
od

er
at

io
n 

an
d 

ag
re

em
en

t w
ith

 T
U

s 
w

hi
ch

 a
re

 n
ot

 y
et

 k
no

w
n.

 

Page 43



  

8.
00

 A
pp

ro
ve

d 
B

y 
C

ou
nc

il 
18

 A
pr

il 
20

07
 

18
 

Pr
io

rit
y 

O
ut

co
m

es
 

W
ha

t w
e 

w
ill

 d
o 

th
is

 y
ea

r 
K

ey
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 In

di
ca

to
rs

 
Pr

og
re

ss
 

 
A

sp
ire

 to
 re

ac
h 

to
p 

qu
ar

til
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

de
liv

er
y 

in
 k

ey
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

 

20
.4

 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 to

p 
qu

ar
til

e 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 ra
tin

gs
 

in
 a

ll 
co

rp
or

at
e 

K
P

Is
 b

y 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

0 

A
m

be
r -

  M
ed

iu
m

 T
er

m
 ta

rg
et

 

S
er

vi
ce

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
t P

la
n 

ag
re

ed
 a

t 
C

ab
in

et
 in

 J
ul

y 
20

07
 

21
 

To
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l’s
 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 m

on
ito

rin
g,

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 re
po

rti
ng

 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 

Im
pl

em
en

t t
he

 E
sc

en
de

nc
y 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 m

an
ag

em
en

t s
ys

te
m

 
ac

ro
ss

 a
ll 

C
ou

nc
il 

S
er

vi
ce

s.
 

21
.1

 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

re
po

rti
ng

 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 th
ro

ug
h 

E
sc

en
de

nc
y 

by
 J

ul
y 

20
07

. 

G
re

en
 - 

A
ll 

sc
he

du
le

d 
se

rv
ic

es
 n

ow
 

ab
le

 to
 re

po
rt 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 th

ro
ug

h 
E

sc
en

de
nc

y.
 

 
Im

pl
em

en
t t

he
 d

at
a 

qu
al

ity
 s

tra
te

gy
. 

21
.2

 
To

 a
ch

ie
ve

 th
e 

hi
gh

es
t s

co
re

 
of

 4
 (a

s 
ju

dg
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 ) 

fo
r t

he
 q

ua
lit

y 
of

 o
ur

 p
ub

lis
he

d 
da

ta
 (b

y 
A

pr
il 

20
08

) 

A
m

be
r -

  M
ed

iu
m

 T
er

m
 ta

rg
et

 

O
n 

tra
ck

. A
ct

io
n 

pl
an

 b
ei

ng
 

im
pl

em
en

te
d.

 A
w

ai
tin

g 
20

06
/7

 
ju

dg
em

en
t. 

 
Im

pl
em

en
t t

he
 L

an
ca

st
er

 A
pp

ro
ac

h 
to

 P
ro

je
ct

 M
an

ag
em

en
t (

LA
M

P
) 

21
.3

 
10

0%
 o

f n
ew

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
us

in
g 

m
et

ho
do

lo
gy

 b
y 

S
ep

t 2
00

7 
G

re
en

. I
m

pl
em

en
te

d 
on

 ti
m

e 

 
Im

pl
em

en
t t

he
  ‘

C
iv

ic
a 

 F
in

an
ci

al
s’

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t s
ys

te
m

 th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 

21
.3

 
A

ll 
m

od
ul

es
 im

pl
em

en
te

d 
by

 
N

ov
em

be
r 2

00
7 

A
m

be
r -

 O
n 

tra
ck

 to
 h

it 
ta

rg
et

 

22
 

To
 in

cr
ea

se
 th

e 
aw

ar
en

es
s 

of
 

eq
ua

l o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
an

d 
di

ve
rs

ity
 is

su
es

. 

P
ro

gr
es

si
ng

 th
e 

E
qu

al
ity

 S
ta

nd
ar

d 
fo

r l
oc

al
 g

ov
er

nm
en

t A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n 
22

.1
 

A
ch

ie
ve

 le
ve

l 2
 o

f t
he

 
E

qu
al

ity
 S

ta
nd

ar
d 

fo
r l

oc
al

 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t b
y 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

07
 

R
E

D
 L

ac
k 

of
 c

ap
ac

ity
 to

 ta
ke

 
fo

rw
ar

d 
w

ith
in

 a
gr

ee
d 

tim
es

ca
le

s 
in

 
or

de
r t

o 
fo

cu
s 

on
 F

ai
r P

ay
 P

ro
je

ct
 

Th
e 

en
d 

of
 N

ov
em

be
r i

s 
un

re
al

is
tic

 
gi

ve
n 

th
e 

ot
he

r p
re

ss
ur

es
 o

n 
H

R
.  

Th
e 

ac
hi

ev
em

en
t i

s 
au

di
te

d 
at

 th
e 

en
d 

of
 M

ar
ch

, w
hi

ch
 is

 p
er

ha
ps

 
m

or
e 

re
al

is
tic

. 

Page 44



  

8.
00

 A
pp

ro
ve

d 
B

y 
C

ou
nc

il 
18

 A
pr

il 
20

07
 

19
 

Pr
io

rit
y 

O
ut

co
m

es
 

W
ha

t w
e 

w
ill

 d
o 

th
is

 y
ea

r 
K

ey
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 In

di
ca

to
rs

 
Pr

og
re

ss
 

 
D

ev
el

op
 a

 G
yp

sy
 &

 T
ra

ve
lle

r 
S

tra
te

gy
 &

 A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n 
22

.2
 

S
tra

te
gy

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 a

nd
 

A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
w

ith
in

 a
gr

ee
d 

tim
es

ca
le

s 

A
m

be
r-

 O
n 

tra
ck

 to
 h

it 
ta

rg
et

 

     
        

Page 45



Page 46

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A 
 

CORPORATE PLAN MONITORING – 30th SEPT 2007 
 

ACTIONS AGREED AT PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT GROUP 
12th OCT 2007 

 
 

RED INDICATORS 
 

Ref 
No. 

What we 
will do this 

year 

Key 
Performance 

Indicators 

 
Progress 
To Date 

 
Agreed Action 

     
1.4 Achieve asset 

sales 
sufficient to 
fund the 
Capital 
Programme 
 

£3.488M of 
General Fund 
capital receipts 
confirmed or 
received by Sept 
’07, & a further 
£1.823M 
confirmed by 
March ’08. 

Report to 
Cabinet in 
October to 
review position 
and to consider 
amending 
capital receipts 
schedule -review 
position and to 
consider amending 
capital receipts 
schedule 

Noted that Cabinet had 
agreed to sell land at 
Mossgate and market 
additional land at 
Scotforth. Further work 
in respect of land at 
Nightingale Hall Farm 
would also be 
progressed. Schemes 
included in the capital 
programme would also 
be reviewed to match 
available funding. 

     
10.1 Implement 

our tourism 
strategy 

Increase tourist 
spend by an 
average of 5% 
annually across 
all categories of 
visitors 

STEAM data 
shows that 
visitor spend 
declined by 1% 
from 2005 to 
2006 

Target not controllable 
by Council. Request 
alternative KPI that is 
SMART 

     
13.1 Undertake all 

works in the 
Council’s 
Energy Mgt 
Action Plan 
(in 05/06 our 
energy policy 
made total 
savings of 
29.83 tonnes 
of CO2) 

Reduce overall 
energy use in 
Council buildings 
from 
6,563,842kwh 
(05/06) to 
5,328,114kwh in 
08/09 

Incorrect 
baseline 
figures 
established 
therefore 
targets need 
revising   

Request amended 
target based on correct 
baseline data. Also 
request gateway targets 
for each financial year to 
allow effective 
performance monitoring.

Page 47



Ref 
No. 

What we 
will do this 

year 

Key 
Performance 

Indicators 

 
Progress 
To Date 

 
Agreed Action 

22.1 Progressing 
the Equality 
Standard for 
local 
government 
Action Plan 

 Achieve level 2 of 
the Equality 
Standard for local 
government by 
November 2007 

Lack of 
capacity to take 
forward within 
agreed 
timescales in 
order to focus 
on Fair Pay 
Project 

The end of 
November is 
unrealistic 
given the other 
pressures on 
HR.  The 
achievement is 
audited at the 
end of March, 
which is 
perhaps more 
realistic. 

Noted priority for HR is 
to complete Fair Pay 
project. Agreed to 
recommend revised 
target date of March 
2008 

 
 

ADDITIONAL ACTION AGREED 
 

Ref 
No. 

What we 
will do this 

year 

Key 
Performance 

Indicators 

 
Progress 
To Date 

 
Agreed 
Action 

     
17.1 Increase the 

number of 
affordable  
units provided 
in both the 
rural and 
urban areas 
particularly by 
using planning 
powers to 
ensure that 
significant 
developments 
include a 
proportion of 
affordable 
homes 

A minimum of 
20% of all 
dwelling 
completions to 
be affordable 

Amber – completions 
currently running 
below 20% due to 
negotiations with 
developers producing 
commuted sums as 
preferred outcome 
that will then fund 
affordable housing 
across the wider 
market.  
Consideration needs 
to be given to 
changing the target to 
reflect current 
practice. 

Basis for Target 
has changed. 
Service 
requested to 
consider how the 
target should be 
amended to 
reflect current 
practice. 

 

Page 48



BUDGET & PERFORMANCE PANEL  
 

LOCAL ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY PILOT STUDY 
 

23 October 2007 
 

Report of Head of City Council (Direct) Services and 
Head of Corporate Strategy. 

  
PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
To advise members of the City Councils involvement in a national pilot study aimed at 
responding to residents perceptions about their local environmental quality 
This report is public  
 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
(1) That members note the intention to take part in this study   
 
(2) That members consider, at a future date, consider the outcomes of the 

study and make recommendations as to how they may best be 
incorporated into the future working of the Council  

 
1.0 Introduction 
 
One of the Council’s over-riding priorities, as set out in its current Corporate Plan, is 
to improve the cleanliness of our streets and public places.  There have been 
significant improvements in a range of performance indicators, however, it is 
recognised that the our residents do want to see higher standards. 
 
The City Council has been invited to take part in a national pilot study to try and 
establish much stronger linkages between residents’ perceptions of local 
environmental quality, what the authority does to meet those perceptions and how 
those things are measured. 
 
2. Report 
 
Lancaster City Council invests a significant amount of resources to make our district 
a cleaner and healthier place. (£7.78M net revenue and £12.45M capital in the 
2006/07 financial year).  This is one of the Council’s current Corporate Plan Medium 
Term objectives; improving the cleanliness of our streets is one of the Councils 
current over-riding priorities. 
 
Whilst the most recent survey of customer satisfaction showed an increase in 
satisfaction with street cleansing, many of the measures used to track environmental 
quality do not directly correlate with residents’ perceptions of local environmental 
quality (i.e. at neighbourhood level). 
 
Lancaster City Council is one of four authorities ( the others being Southwark, 
Sheffield and Allerdale) that have been invited to take part in an LGA sponsored pilot 
study, the outcomes of which will be rolled out nationally.  Full details of the pilot 
study are set out in Appendix A but in summary, it will involve the authority working 

Agenda Item 10Page 49



with the Association of Public Service Excellence (APSE), LGA (Local Government 
Association), ENCAMS (Environmental Campaigns – ‘Keep Britain Tidy’) to: 
 

1. measure the local residents perception of local environmental quality in a 
variety of local situations 

2. relate those perceptions to local standards of service delivery 
3. test the extent to which ways of measuring customer perceptions, standards 

of service delivery and service efficiency can be related at neighbourhood 
level. 

 
Poulton has been identified as the local area whose characteristics best match with 
the intentions of the pilot study. It is anticipated that the groundwork will be 
completed by December ’07 with a final completion date of the pilot phase by 31 
March 2008.  After this discussions will be held involving all partners to discuss how 
the findings might be progressed. 
 
The first planning meeting for the project is scheduled for Thursday 11th October and 
the outcomes of that meeting will be reported at this meeting of the BPP. 
 
Summary 
 
The invitation to take part in this pilot study is recognition of the Council’s ongoing 
corporate commitment to improve the environmental quality of the district.   
 
The study will provide a methodology for best determining how to meet the needs of 
local people and in particular address their perceptions about their local 
environmental quality. 
 
The outcomes of the study will complement the Council’s commitment to the roll out 
of neighbourhood management across the district and will, it is hoped, prove to be of 
benefit to authorities all across the country. 
 
CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability and Rural 
Proofing) 
 
Outcomes from the pilot study will have a positive impact upon residents’ perceptions of 
local environmental quality 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
Staff time has been re-allocated in order to support this valuable pilot but this will not have 
any direct bearing on service delivery. The cost of carrying out the preliminary survey is still 
being evaluated and will be reported at the meeting but it is not expected to be significant. 
The support of the Poulton Neighbourhood Management Environment Sub-Group is being 
sought. 
The outcome of the study should give the Council an informed judgement on the 
achievement of value for money and efficiency in services such as street cleansing and this 
in turn may raise issues for consideration as part of future years budget setting.  
 
SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
The Section 151 Officer has been consulted and has nothing further to add. 

Page 50



LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
There are no legal implications arising from involvement in this pilot project.  
 
MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
 
The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has nothing further to add. 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
 

Contact Officer: M Davies/R Tulej 
Telephone:01524 582401/2079 
E-mail: mdavies@lancaster.gov.uk  
             rtulej@lancaster.gov.uk 

 

Page 51



Appendix A 
 
 
 
 

 
A PROPOSAL 

 
for a Pilot Study that will test the feasibility of a 
Voluntary Local Performance Management Framework 
(VLPMF) covering aspects of Local Environmental 
Quality that contribute to the Quality of Life. 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 52



 
 

  

1.0 Introduction and Background to This Project 
 
1.1 This proposal has been prepared at the request of the Local Government 

Association. The proposal is based on discussions involving the Local 
Government Association (LGA), representatives of the NEON (National 
Environmental Officers Network) group of local authorities, Environmental 
Campaigns (ENCAMS- the environmental charity which runs the Keep Britain 
Tidy campaign) and the Association of Public Service Excellence (APSE.) 

 
1.2 Among other activities, ENCAMS is an adviser on Local Environmental 

Quality and Management to the Government and to approximately 150 local 
councils and other land managers in the UK and Europe. 

 
2.0 Background 
 
2.1 The LGA’s Greening Communities work programme for Streetscene and 

Public Space has the following key objective: 
  
 ‘To improve perception and measurable achievement of councils’ 

performance on streetscene and public space, with an established framework 
for celebrating and promoting positive action with a) a community focus and 
b) an objective of achieving accreditation for inward investment.’ 

 
2.2 At the January 2007 NEON meeting, LGA officers invited a range of 

organisations involved with the design, management and improvement of the 
local environment to discuss a proposal to encourage all Councils to improve 
their performance in streetscene and public space management. 

 
2.3 Amongst the range of issues identified was the need for: 
 

-   increased community and customer focus and accountability by public 
bodies; 

-   local choice of benchmarked indicators at district and sub-district levels; 
-   the need to build on existing, proven and adopted protocols and networks; 

and 
-   the ability for indicators to cover customer perceptions, service outputs, 
    standards and process management. 

  

3.0 Aims and Objectives of the Project 
 
3.1 The aim of this project is to produce a voluntary, LGA-recommended, Local 

Performance Management Framework (VLPMF), based on existing, proven 
methodologies and support networks, which allows local choice to be made 
from a library of customer-focused indicators. 

 
3.2 The VLPMF will contain a library of Local Indicators related to Local 

Environmental Quality (LEQ) which is designed to offer greater choice and 
flexibility for local authorities to respond to local priorities. Importantly, it aims 
to: 

 
- link to the many other useful tools that have been developed by a range of 
  organisations and to create a framework to enable more effective 
benchmarking  

Page 53



 
 

  

  between authorities; and  
- accommodate the intention within the Local Government White Paper for a 
  reduced set of national indicators. 

 
3.3 The objectives of the study are:  
 - to measure customer perceptions of Local Environmental Quality (LEQ) 

and related Quality of Life issues in   a variety of local situations;  
 - to relate those customer perceptions to local standards of service delivery 

  (product) in relation to LEQ;  
- to relate local standards of LEQ service delivery to process measures of  

service efficiency; and,to test the extent to which measurement protocols for 
customer perceptions, standards of service delivery and service efficiency 
can be related at neighbourhood level. 

 

4.0 Methodology 
 
4.1 Customer perceptions will be measured using a self-completion 

questionnaire developed by ENCAMS, covering the range of issues 
outlined in Appendix 1. This will be administered by partner authorities, 
who will select which elements of the questionnaire they wish to use, 
and the area(s) in which they wish to use it. 

 
4.2 Local standards of LEQ service delivery will be measured using 

proprietary ‘Local Environmental Quality Survey’ techniques that are 
employed in the national Local Environmental Quality Survey of 
England (LEQSE).  

 
 
4.3 Service efficiency will be measured using a mixture of: 
 

-   existing protocols developed by APSE, wherever applicable; and  
-   protocols developed in consultation between partner authorities, 
APSE and ENCAMS during the course of the study. 
 

4.4 Particular attention will be paid to the feasibility of measuring service 
efficiency, and of developing tools for data collection, at neighbourhood 
level. 

 
5 Timetable 
 
5.1 Following the agreement of Project Plans between individual Partner 

authorities and ENCAMS/APSE, partners will aim to complete the work 
content by December 31st 2007. It is anticipated that work will continue 
beyond that date in order to ensure project completion, with a final 
completion date of this pilot phase being 31 March 2008. After this, 
discussions will be held involving all partners to discuss how the 
findings might best be progressed. 

 
 

Page 54



 

 

    
 
    
 

BUDGET AND PERFORMANCE PANEL  
 
  
 

Work Programme Report 
23rd October 2007 

 
Report of Head of Democratic Services 

  
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
To update Members with regard to the work programme. 
 
 
 
This report is public  

 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS  
 

(1) That Members consider the referral from the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee with regard to recharging and whether a briefing note or report 
would be appropriate. 

(2) That Members consider the request from Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
with regard to Parking Strategy and whether this should be added to the 
work programme. 

(3) That Members note that a report on Procedure and Performance in the 
Council’s Collection of Vehicular fines will be available for consideration at 
the next Budget and Performance Panel meeting. 

 
 
 
1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 Referral from Overview and Scrutiny Committee – Recharging - Inhouse costs 
 

At the Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting on 5th September 2007 Members 
resolved to request the Budget and Performance Panel to consider the issue of 
Recharging within the Council with particular regard to City Council (Direct) Services 
and Information Services.   
 
This request stemmed from a presentation from the Cemeteries team illustrating the 
improvements to maintenance within the Council’s cemeteries since Health & 
Strategic Housing had assumed responsibility for the service, including responsibility 
for gravediggers and maintenance.  It was reported that the maintenance budget 

Agenda Item 11Page 55



could be used more effectively without the recharging costs that CC(D)S had 
previously imposed. 
 
Similarly it was noted that enquiries regarding coloured photocopies revealed that it 
was less expensive to use a local stationer than order copies in-house.  For example 
an A4 sheet of coloured paper was priced by IS at 64p for up to 10 copies (55p for 
between 10 and 50 copies and 40p per sheet for over 50 copies) whereas a local 
printer quoted 30p a copy for up to 100 copies, reducing to 20p a copy for over 500 
copies. 
 
Members are asked to consider whether it would be useful to request a briefing note 
or report on this. 

 
1.2 Referral from Overview and Scrutiny Committee – Parking Strategy 
 

At its meeting on 5th September 2007, in response to a referral from Cabinet with 
regard to the Parking Strategy, the Overview and Scrutiny Committee agreed to 
review the Parking Strategy in six months.  However it was noted that there were one 
of two issues which warranted more immediate consideration, one of which has been 
referred to the Panel.  This relates to the issue of pricing of car parks and the 
possibility of installing barriers.   
 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee recommended that the Panel consider the issue of 
pricing of car parks and the possibility of installing barriers and question the cost of 
charges against the cost of enforcement. 
 
The Panel are requested to consider whether to add this to their work programme. 

 
1.3 Procedure and Performance in the Council’s Collection of Vehicular fines 
 

At the last Budget and Performance Panel meeting Members requested further 
information with regard to this issue.  This is currently being produced and it should 
be available for the next meeting. 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
 

Contact Officer: Liz Bateson  
Telephone: 01524 582047 
E-mail: ebateson@lancaster.gov.uk 
Ref:  

 

Page 56



IS
SU

E 
JU

N
E 

12
TH

  
JU

LY
 

17
TH

 
JU

LY
 

31
ST

 
SE

PT
EM

B
ER

 
11

TH
  

O
C

TO
B

ER
 

23
R

D
 

N
O

VE
M

B
ER

  
27

TH
  

JA
N

U
A

R
Y 

29
TH

 
FE

B
R

U
A

R
Y 

26
TH

  
 

S
TA

R
 C

H
A

M
B

E
R

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

B
&

P
 F

R
A

M
E

W
O

R
K

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
E

R
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T 
M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 

Le
ad

er
’s

 4
th
 

Q
ua

rte
rly

 
C

or
po

ra
te

 
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
re

po
rt 

 
 

Le
ad

er
’s

 1
st
 

Q
ua

rte
rly

 
C

or
po

ra
te

 
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
re

po
rt 

 
 

Le
ad

er
’s

 2
nd

 
Q

ua
rte

rly
 

C
or

po
ra

te
 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
M

on
ito

rin
g 

re
po

rt 

 
Le

ad
er

’s
 4

th
 

Q
ua

rte
rly

 
C

or
po

ra
te

 
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
re

po
rt 

P
E

R
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T 
A

N
D

 
D

A
TA

 Q
U

A
LI

TY
 

TR
A

IN
IN

G
/A

U
D

IT
 

C
O

M
M

IS
S

IO
N

  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
A

R
TN

E
R

S
H

IP
 

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 
 

 
 

Fu
nd

in
g 

to
 

no
n-

H
ou

si
ng

 
vo

lu
nt

ar
y 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

 
an

d 
S

LA
s 

 
 

 
 

E
XE

TE
R

 
B

E
N

C
H

M
A

R
K

IN
G

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

H
O

M
E

 W
O

R
K

IN
G

 
P

IL
O

T 
S

C
H

E
M

E
 –

 
IN

TE
R

IM
 R

E
P

O
R

T 

 
 

 
Jo

hn
 

D
on

ne
llo

n 
to

 p
re

se
nt

 

 
 

 
 

 

B
E

S
T 

V
A

LU
E

 A
N

D
 

P
E

R
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E

 P
LA

N
 

(A
N

N
U

A
L 

R
E

P
O

R
T)

 

 
 

 
D

ou
bl

e 
G

lu
m

 
K

P
Is

 re
po

rt 
 

 
 

 

Page 57



IS
SU

E 
JU

N
E 

12
TH

  
JU

LY
 

17
TH

 
JU

LY
 

31
ST

 
SE

PT
EM

B
ER

 
11

TH
  

O
C

TO
B

ER
 

23
R

D
 

N
O

VE
M

B
ER

  
27

TH
  

JA
N

U
A

R
Y 

29
TH

 
FE

B
R

U
A

R
Y 

26
TH

  
 

V
A

LU
E

 F
O

R
 

M
O

N
E

Y
/E

FF
IC

IE
N

C
Y

  
S

TR
A

TE
G

Y
 

Fo
rw

ar
d 

A
nn

ua
l 

E
ffi

ci
en

cy
 

S
ta

te
m

en
t 

 
R

ev
ie

w
 o

f 
E

ffi
ci

en
cy

 
S

tra
te

gy
 

 
 

 
 

 

H
O

U
S

IN
G

 S
LA

’s
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

A
C

C
E

S
S

 T
O

 
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 –
 

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 O
F 

O
U

TC
O

M
E

S
 (T

O
 B

E
 

A
G

R
E

E
D

) 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

D
IS

C
U

S
S

IO
N

S
 W

IT
H

 
S

E
R

V
IC

E
 H

E
A

D
S

 
(O

N
G

O
IN

G
) 

 
 

H
ea

d 
of

 
P

ro
pe

rty
 

S
er

vi
ce

s 

H
ea

d 
of

 
D

em
oc

ra
tic

 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

 
 

 
  

H
O

M
E

LE
S

S
N

E
S

S
 

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 F
O

R
M

 
R

E
V

IE
W

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

S
C

R
U

TI
N

Y
 O

F 
FU

N
D

IN
G

 T
O

 
E

XT
E

R
N

A
L 

B
O

D
IE

S
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

LE
G

A
L 

FE
E

S
 F

O
R

 
LE

A
S

E
S

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

C
O

LL
E

C
TI

O
N

 O
F 

V
E

H
IC

U
LA

R
 F

IN
E

S
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 P
le

as
e 

N
ot

e:
 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 M
an

ag
em

en
t  

-  
 F

ol
lo

w
in

g 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n 

of
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 m

an
ag

em
en

t i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
th

e 
P

an
el

 m
ay

 b
e 

m
in

de
d 

to
 ti

m
et

ab
le

 
m

ee
tin

gs
 w

ith
 S

er
vi

ce
 H

ea
ds

 a
nd

 C
ab

in
et

 M
em

be
rs

 a
s 

a 
ne

ed
 is

 id
en

tif
ie

d.
 

Page 58


	Agenda
	6 Star Chamber Updates
	33 Cabinet 9 Oct Star Chamber Appendix.doc, 09/10/2007 Cabinet

	7 Legal Fees for Leases
	bpp231007appendix.pdf

	8 Efficiency Strategy Review
	Efficiency VfM Strategy Sept 2007 (2)Appendix A

	9 Corporate Plan Monitoring - Update
	Corporate Plan Monitoring Q2 Actions Appendix A

	10 Local Environmental Quality Pilot Study
	11 Work Programme Report
	WORK PROGRAMME June 2007 -


